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October 7, 2003
To Our Shareholders,

Empire Financial Holding Company’s first year as a public company began a transitional
period that ultimately will position the Company for a return to sustainable growth‘ aﬁd
profitability. While our 2002 financial performance was compromised, in part, by
pervasive stock price volatility and generally weak economic and market conditions, we
did recognize increased commissions and fees associated with both the growth in the
number of registered representatives in our Empire Capital Management division and
increased daily average trading volumes in the U.S. and major global equities markets.
Today, bolstered by an improving operating environment, we are seeking to build on that
momentum and reinforce our platform through a steadfast focus on our core

competencies and strategic product and service development.

To: re'éhp g}xr 2002 financial results, total revenues for the year ended December 31,2002
Were, $1 8. 5 mllhon compared with total revenues of $19.5 million in the prior year. We
reported a net loss for 2002 of $2.5 million, or $0.54 per basic and diluted share,
compai%e%f W;th net income of $1.5 million, or $0.38 per basic and diluted share, for 2001.
Our highly liquid balance sheet had total assets of $13.5 million, including cash and cash
equivalents of $4.1 million as of December 31, 2002. We maintained zero long-term
debt and had shareholders’ equity of $3.9 million at year-end 2002. Net cash provided by

operating activities was $1.8 million in 2002.

Much has been accomplished since last year. We are currently in the final stages of a
restructuring process that will realign the Company and better position us to benefit from
both the stronger equity market and changing brokerage services landscape. Our growth

strategy emphasizes expansion of our discount retail brokerage and order execution




businesses, and development of our independent contractor relationships. Recent
changes on our order execution desk are allowing us to internalize more order flow and
expand into international trading execution, while offering lucrative opportunities to
partner with outside securities firms. We also remain focused on our investment advisory
business and plan to increase sales within all platforms through comprehensive marketing

and promotional programs.

We expect to dispose of the correspondent clearing division of Advantage Tradiﬁg
Groﬁp, Inc. and intend to complete this process before year-end 20031 borrespondent
clearing is a capital-intensive business that has underperformed relative to our other
business segments. The sale of the clearing services division supports our strategic
initiatives, allowing us to outsource our cleéirfﬁg needs at significant cost savings, while
re-deploying capital to highér return businesses. |

The realignment of 6ur assets and resources around our four core service areas — discount
retail brokerage, order execution, independent contracting and investment advisory
services — positions Empire Financial to retain and grow its position as a leading low cost
provider in the securities brokerage arena. We are leveraging this strong competitive
position to increase brand recognition, build our retail customer base and diversify’ dur
income streams, while improving operating efficiencies. |

In terms of management transitions,‘Richard L. -Golg)le'cleased being an officer of the
Company and its subsidiaries i May of this year, and I assumed the role of sole Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Goble remains a significant shareholder and a
director of Empire Financial. Subsequently, Donald A. Wojnowski Jr. was promoted to
President of the Company. In addition, the Company hired a Director of Trading
Operations to oversee institutional execution services and to spearhead the diversification
of Advantage Trading’s market making capabilities to include foreign shares, ADRs,
small cap and OTC Bulletin Board stocks. These actions round out the depth and

expertise of our executive management, and with the Company’s transitional period



largely behind us, our team is ready and motivated to drive the long-term growth and

development of Empire Financial.

Thank you for your ongoing support of Empire Financial Holding Company. We look
forward to capitalizing on many bright opportunities to restore growth and build
shareholder value in the months and years ahead.

Sincerely,

/s/ Kevin M. Gagne

Kevin M. Gagne
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary
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This Form 10-K contains statements about future events and expectations which-are, “forward looking
statements”. Any statement in this 10-K that is not a statement of historical fact may be deemed to be a forward
looking statement. Forward-looking statements represent our judgment about the future and are not based on
historical facts. These statements include: forecasts for growth in the number of customers using our service,
statements regarding our anticipated revenues, expense levels, liquidity and capital resources and other statements
including statements containing such words as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “could,”
“estimate,” “continue” or “plan” and similar expressions or variations. These statements reflect the current risks,
uncertainties and assumptions related to various factors including, without limitation, fluctuations in market prices,
competition, changes in securities regulations or other applicable governmental regulations, technological changes,
management disagreements and other factors described under the heading “Factors affecting our operating results,
business prospects, and market price of stock™ and elsewhere in this report and in other filings made by us with the
SEC. Based upon changing conditions, should any one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should
any underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described in this report as
anticipated, believed, estimated or intended. We undertake no obligation to update, and we do not have a policy of
updating or revising, these forward-looking statements. Except where the context otherwise requires, the terms
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we,” “us,” or “our” refer to the business of Empire Financial Holding Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

PARTI

Item 1. Business

Overview

We are a financial brokerage services firm serving institutional, retail and wholesale customers that
operates in two business segments: brokerage and advisory services, and order execution and clearing services. Our
services are delivered through the Internet and traditional means.

We have several operating subsidiaries, including, Empire Financial Group, Inc., which conducts our retail
discount and full service brokerage operation and services independent registered representatives; Empire
Investment Advisors, Inc., which began providing financial and investment advisory products and services in May
2001; and Advantage Trading Group, Inc., which conducts our securities order execution and clearing operations.

Our brokerage and advisory business provides financial brokerage services directly to our retail customers,
including individuals and small to mid-sized institutions such as hedge funds, money managers, mutual funds and
pension funds. We also provide services to unaffiliated broker dealers and other financial institutions that want to
provide expanded services to their retail customers under their own brand label. In May 2001, we began offering
fee-based investment advisory services to our customers, independent registered investment advisors and
unaffiliated broker dealers through our wholly owned subsidiary Empire Investment Advisors. Services include
access to separate account money managers, managed mutual fund portfolios, asset allocation tools, separate
account manager and mutual fund research, due diligence and quarterly performance review.

Our securities order execution services involve filling orders to purchase or sell securities received from
approximately 75 independent broker dealers on behalf of their retail and institutional customers. We typically act as
principal in these transactions and derive our order execution trading revenues, net, from the difference between the
price paid when a security is bought and the price received when that security is sold. We also provide clearing
services to other unaffiliated broker dealers. Our clearing services involve account settlement and delivery functions.

In April 2002, we raised $6 million through an initial public offering of 1,000,000 shares of common stock.
Following the offering, our common stock has been listed on the American Stock Exchange.

Recent Developments

Establishment of Special Committees. On March 28, 2003, we established two special committees of
directors each of which possesses the full authority of our board of directors. One of the special committees is
authorized and empowered to manage the business and operations of both Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Empire



Investment Advisors, Inc. The second special committee is authorized and empowered to manage the business and
operations of Advantage Trading Group, Inc. The foregoing special committees shall each automatically cease to
exist upon the earlier of (a) the consummation of the spin-off of Advantage Trading Group, Inc. from our company
as described below and (b) June 30, 2003.

Proposed Spin-Off. On March 28, 2003, we entered into a non-binding letter of intent with our principal
shareholders, Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble, dated March 28, 2003, confirming our interest in effectuating
a spin-off of one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Advantage Trading Group, Inc. The consummation of the spin-
off is subject to the execution of a definitive agreement between us and our principal shareholders that would
provide for, among other things, (a) that we would distribute to all holders of our common stock, all shares of the
common stock of Advantage Trading Group, Inc. (b) that we and the principal shareholders shall take all reasonable
or necessary measures to effectuate the spin-off, (c) that each of the principal shareholders will vote in favor of this
distribution, if the Securities and Exchange Commission, the American Stock Exchange or the State of Florida
requires approval of the spin-off by our shareholders and (d) that the spin-off and other related transactions will be
tax free to us and our shareholders.

The definitive agreement would also provide that subsequent to the consummation of the spin-off, Mr.
Goble and Mr. Gagne would exchange their shares of our common stock and Advantage common stock, so that Mr.
Goble will receive shares of Advantage common stock and Mr. Gagne will receive shares of our common stock.
Following the share exchange, Mr. Goble would own approximately 80% of the Advantage common stock and Mr.
Gagne would own approximately 80% of our common stock.

There is no assurance that the definitive agreement will be executed or the distribution of Advantage
common stock described above will be consummated.

Resolution of Management and Administrative Disagreements. As a result of the approval of the proposed
spin-off and establishment of the special committees of directors discussed above, all management and
administrative disagreements between our Co-Chairmen of the Board and Co-Chief Executive Officers have been
resolved. However, the Co-Chairmen of the Board and Co-Chief Executive Officers may disagree in the future
regarding management and administrative decisions. Our bylaws, the Co-Chairmen’s and Co-Chief Executive
Officer’s respective employment agreements and certain resolutions we adopted provide that our board of directors
shall resolve any disagreements that may arise in the future. If the board of directors does not resolve such
disagreements in a timely manner, our business may be materially adversely affected.

Our Company

Our principal executive offices are located at 1385 West State Road 434, Longwood, Florida 32750, and
our telephone number is 1-800-lowfees (1-800-569-3337). Our website is located at www.empirenow.com.
Information contained in or connected to our web site is not part of this report. We do not make our periodic filings
available on our website at this time. However, for those persons that make a request in writing (Attn: Randy
Cupples) or by e-mail (randy@empirenow.com), we will provide free of charge our Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports, our proxy
statements and/or reports filed by officers and directors with the Securities and Exchange Commission under Section
16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act. These reports are also available on the Securities Exchange Commission
website at www.sec.gov by searching the EDGAR database for our company’s filings.

Securities Brokerage, Execution and Clearing Industry

The securities brokerage business involves the purchase and sale of securities. A retail customer who
desires to purchase or sell a specific security usually places a securities order with a broker dealer. Broker dealers,
including us, charge retail customers a commission or fee for processing these orders. Our commissions and fees
revenues are derived entirely from commissions or fees charged to retail customers.

In order to fill the customer’s order, the broker dealer generally places an order with an order execution
service or market maker. The order execution service or market maker most often fills the order as principal by
either buying or selling the specific security. Both order execution service firms and market makers obtain net




revenues from the difference between the price paid when a specific security is bought and the price received when
that security is sold. We offer order execution services to approximately 75 broker dealers and derive our order
execution trading revenues, net, from these differences."

Each securities transaction also involves clearing activities including sending a confirmation to both the
buyer and seller, obtaining payment from the buyer and custody of the security from the seller, and delivering
payment to the seller and the security to the buyer. Companies that provide clearing services receive a fee for these
services from the broker dealers involved. As of March31; 2003, we provided clearing services for most of the
securities transactions initiated by our retail customers and 14 unaffiliated broker-dealers.

BROKERAGE AND ADVISORY SEGMENT

We provide financial brokerage services directly to our retail customers, including individuals and small to
mid-sized institutions such as hedge funds, money managers, mutual funds and pension funds. Approximately 71%
of our 2002 revenues, approximately 53% of our 2001 revenues and approximately 38% of revenues for 2000 were
derived from commissions and fees generated in connection with our retail financial brokerage services. Our retail
customers may place their securities orders online through our secure website located at www.empirenow.com or
via telephone by calling our retail trading desk at 1-877-lowfees (1-877-569-3337). We charge our customers an
agreed upon brokerage commission. Our online retail trading commissions start at $5.00 per trade and our broker
assisted trades start at $19.00 per trade.

In Juty 2001, we acquired specified assets of Centennial Capital Management Inc., consisting primarily of
contract rights with independent registered representatives with-an estimated useful life of approximately 3.3 years
for a price of approximately $2.1 million, and assumed specified liabilities, primarily contract obligations.
Centennial Management was in the business of processing securities transactions for, and providing other support
services to, independent registered representatives located throughout the United States. In September 2002, we
purchased selected assets of US Rica and Star Financial. U S Rica and Star Financial were in the business of
processing securities transactions for, and providing other support services to, independent registered representatives
located throughout the United States. After we completed these transactions, most of these independent registered
representatives also began processing securities transactions through us. For a fee and a participation in their
revenues, we provide these representatives with back office support, client statements and reports, branch office
regulatory compliance and advisory services. These representatives typically pay all of their office and marketing
expenses.

We also provide services to unaffiliated broker dealers and other financial institutions that want to provide
expanded services to their retail customers under their own brand label. We refer to this as private label brokerage
services. As of December 31, 2002, we provided private label brokerage services to 27 financial institutions. We
provide their retail customers with the same level of service and full range of products offered to our own retail
customers. We also charge their retail customers commissions and fees similar to those charged to our own retail
customers. We pay these institutions fees based on transaction volume generated by their retail customers.

In May 2001, we began offering fee-based investment advisory services to our customers, independent
registered investment advisors and unaffiliated broker dealers through our wholly owned subsidiary Empire
Investment Advisors. These services are web-based and are delivered through a platform that combines a variety of
independent third party providers. Services include access to separate account money managers, managed mutual
fund portfolios, asset allocation tools, separate account manager and mutual fund research, due diligence and
quarterly performance review. We charge our customers an all-inclusive fee for these services, which is based on
assets under management. As of March 31,2003, the annual fee was equal to approximately 85 basis points times the
assets under management. .

Retail Brokerage Services
(i) Discount retail brokerage

We provide discount securities brokerage services to retail investors, including both individuals and small
to mid-sized institutions such as hedge funds, money managers, mutual funds and pension funds. We charge our



customers an agreed upon brokerage commission. Our online retail trading commissions’ start at $5.00 per trade and
our broker assisted trades as well as our independent contractor trades start at $19.00 per trade. Our client support
representatives are available from 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. eastern time. Qur services allow for after hours trading.

Customers can directly place orders to buy and sell NASDAQ and exchange-listed securities, as well as
equity and index options, through our automated order processing system. We support a range of order types,
including market orders, limit orders (good-till-cancelled or day), stop orders and short sales. Our system
automatically checks the parameters of an order, together with the customer’s buying power and positions held,
prior to executing an order. All listed market orders, subject to certain size limitations, are executed at the National
Best Bid/Offer, or NBBO, or better at the time of receipt by a third market firm or exchange. The NBBO is a
dynamically updated representation of the combined highest bid and lowest offer quoted across all United States
stock exchanges and market makers registered in a specific stock. Eligible orders are exposed to the marketplace for
possible price improvement, but in no case are orders executed at a price inferior to the NBBO. Limit orders are
executed based on an indicated price and time priority. All NASDAQ market orders, subject to certain size
limitations, are executed at the Best Bid/Offer or better at the time of receipt by the market maker.

Our retail brokerage services are readily accessible to our brokerage customers through multiple gateways:

e Internet Access. Customers using personal computers can access our brokerage services through the
Internet by direct modem access. Our website, www.empirenow.com, combines an easy-to-use
interface with the trading capabilities and financial content that experienced investors demand. We
have designed our website to appeal to a broad range of retail investors, from novice to more
sophisticated investors, particularly those seeking competitively priced online services. We intend to
continually develop the features of our website and to position ourselves as the high value/low cost
provider in our pricing segment. '

o  Voice Telephone. We provide customers with a toll-free number to access our brokers and other client
support representatives. We also provide our clients with direct access to our registered representatives
and principals through our client support desk to allow them to execute trades other than online. Our
brokers are committed to using their trading desks to obtain for our clients the fastest execution of their
order at the best possible price at the time the order is given. As of December 31, 2002, our retail client
support division consisted of 16 employees, of which 11 are registered representatives and principals.

e Touch-tone Telephone. We have implemented a touch-tone telephone system to provide an alternate
delivery channel for customers to access automated quote information, place stock and option orders,
review account balances and check messages from any touch-tone telephone.

(i) Full service retail brokerage services

We also service retail customers through a nationwide network of independent registered representatives.
The representatives provide their own offices and utilize our clearing, execution and web-based services to provide
access to investments to their client base. We receive a small percentage of the revenue generated by the
representatives in exchange for providing back office support. As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately 31
fully independent branch offices, which we refer to as Offices of Supervisory Jurisdiction or OSJ’s, providing these
services.

We recruit experienced, highly productive independent financial advisors by offering them an attractive
compensation package and the independence of owning and operating their own branch office. Generally, each
branch office pays substantially all costs associated with establishing and operating the branch in return for a
relatively high portion of gross commission revenue. We provide regulatory, compliance and other support services
to the branch office financial advisors. This program allows expansion of brokerage operations with relatively
minimal capital outlay.




We offer full customer brokerage services using corporate equity and debt securities, U.S. government
securities, municipal securities, mutual funds, variable annuity and variable life insurance products, general
insurance, portfolio planning and management, cash management services, and portfolio tracking.

Private Label Brokerage Services . SR ‘

Various financial institutions are increasingly seeking to enter the securities brokerage business. Given the
time and the complexity involved in obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals, one efficient method for financial
institutions to enter the securities brokerage business is to contract with a third-party provider of online investing
solutions in order to provide this packaged solution to their customers. We offer private label brokerage services to
broker dealers and other financial institutions that want to provide expanded services to their retail customers. As of
March 31, 2003, we provided private label brokerage services for 27 financial institutions and are marketing these
services to other broker dealers, banks, savings and loan institutions, credit unions, insurance companies, financial
planners and various other financial institutions.

Our private label brokerage solutions are designed to provide our full range of retail customer brokerage
services through the financial institution’s website. The website screens have the financial institution’s look and feel,
with a reference to Empire Financial Group, Inc. as the provider for the services. Customers that use our services
through these other financial institutions have accounts directly with us and are treated as our customers. We charge
these customers similar fees as we charge our own retail customers and pay these institutions fees based on
transaction volume generated by their retail customers: : :

Our primary target market includes smaller institutions that may lack the resources to efficiently implement
their own brokerage solution. Our services benefit these institutions by allowing them to retain customers and their
customer credit balances, create additional revenue sources and increase traffic to their own websites, potentially
leading to additional business. We have developed our own Internet-based software systems to provide such services
tailored to the needs of these institutions while.providing the same level and range of products and services we offer
to our own retail customers. We believe that this strategy will allow us to grow rapidly and efficiently by gaining
access to the customer bases of other financial institutions.

Investment Advisory Services

In May 2001, we began offering fee-based investment advisory services to our customers, independent
registered investment advisors and unaffiliated broker dealers through our wholly owned subsidiary, Empire
Investment Advisors, Inc. These services are web-based and are delivered through a platform that uses a variety of
independent third party providers. We believe these services enable us to establish more comprehensive
relationships with our customers. The investment advisory services we provide include: '

* investment portfolio planning with recommendations on overall portfolio allocations for different types
of investments based on customers’ long term needs;

e recommendations regarding mutual fund and separate account manager investments; access to separate
account money managers, managed mutual fund portfolios and asset allocation tools;

¢ manager and mutual fund due diligence; and,
¢ portfolio performance review and reallocation.

We do not provide recommendations regarding investment in individual equity securities. These services are
provided via an all-inclusive, low cost fee based on assets under management. As of March 31, 2003, the fee is
approximately 85 basis points per annum of the value of our customer’s managed assets. Empire Investment
Advisors, Inc. is registered as an investment adviser in all 50 states under the Investment Adviser’s Act of 1940. .

Our investment advisory services provide a competitive advantage to the Empire Capital Management
Division of Empire Financial Group, Inc. The independent registered representatives of this division can offer the
product and services of Empire Investment Advisors, Inc. to their retail clients upon licensing with Empire



Investment Advisors, Inc. High net worth clients and commission adverse clients can now have money management
services that compete with banks and other financial institutions.

Ancillary Retail Brokerage Services

. .

We offer the following ancillary services:

Market Data and Financial Information. During trading hours, we continually receive a direct line, or feed,
of detailed quote data, market information and news. Our retail customers can create their own personal list of
stocks and options for quick access to current pricing information. We provide our customers free access to delayed
quotes, including stocks, options, major market indices, most active issues and largest gainers and losers for the
major exchanges. Real-time quotes are also available for a small fee. Upon placing an order, a customer is provided
with a real-time bid and asked quote, at no extra charge. We also offer our customers a streaming real-time quote
service for $19.95 per month, which entitles the customer to receive unlimited quotes per month. Our alliances and
content provider relationships allow us to offer access to breaking news, charts, market commentary and analysis
and company financial information. Our website, www.empirenow.com, provides comprehensive investment
research content as well as access to SEC filings of public companies, among other features.

Portfolio Tracking and Records Management. Customers have online access to a listing of all their
portfolio assets held with us, including data on the date of purchase, cost basis, current price and current market
value. The system automatically calculates unrealized profits and losses for each asset held. Information provided to
our customers also includes total short-term or long-term gain/loss and commissions paid. Detailed account balance
and transaction information includes cash and money fund balances, buying power, net market portfolio value,
dividends paid, interest earned, deposits and withdrawals. Customers can also create watch lists to include any
number of stocks, options, mutual funds and other financial investments a customer is interested in tracking. All
transaction and portfolio records are automatically updated to reflect trading activity. Buy and sell orders placed
when the markets are closed are automatically submitted prior to the next day’s market opening. Online account
holders receive electronic notification of order execution, and all customers receive printed trade confirmations and
detailed monthly statements. We also provide for the transmittal of proxy, annual report and tender offer materials to
customers. We offer our online customers electronic confirmations and are planning to offer electronic statements.

Cash Management Services. Customer payments received through the mail or federal wire system are
credited to customer accounts. We also provide cash management services to our customers. For example, funds not
invested in securities earn interest in a credit interest program or can be invested in money market funds. In addition,
we provide free checking services and debit cards for our customer accounts through a commercial bank. We are
exploring the expansion of these services.

Account Security. We use a combination of proprietary and industry standard security measures to protect
customers’ assets. Customers are assigned unique account numbers, user identifications and passwords that must be
used each time they log on to our system. We rely on encryption and authentication technology to provide the
security necessary to effect the confidential exchange of information. We do not plan to share customer data with
third parties.

Strategic Marketing Efforts

We plan to increase our brand recognition to attract new retail customers. We are developing a
comprehensive marketing plan to build market awareness, educate the investing public about our services and
broaden and enhance brand name recognition and loyalty. In July 2001, we acquired Centennial Capital
Management, Inc. and in September 2002, we acquired US Rica and Star Financial, which added a full-service
brokerage capability to Empire. We are actively pursuing additional alliances with various companies to increase
trading volume and operational efficiencies, to further enhance name recognition and to diversify our income
stream. In addition, we regularly examine new ways to provide additional products and services to our current
clients, as well as new clients, including, for example, banks and other financial institutions seeking to provide
expanded services to their customers. We also intend to expand our market share through, among other things,
television, direct-response advertising, advertising on our own and other websites, a public relations program and
live seminars.




Competition

The market for brokerage services, particularly over the Internet, is rapidly expanding and extremely
competitive. This competition is expected to continue to grow in the future. Major competitors include Charles
Schwab & Co. Inc., E*Trade Group, Inc., TD Waterhouse Group, Inc., Ameritrade Holding Corporation and
Fidelity Brokerage Services, Inc. In addition, we compete with financial institutions and investing services that offer
online brokerage services. We believe the major competitive factors for brokerage services include cost, service,
quality, ease of use and customer satisfaction.

Some of the strongest competition comes from companies who have greater marketing, financial and
technical resources than ours. These competitors can offer a wider range of services and financial products than we
can. Some of our competitors also have greater name recognition and more extensive client bases. These
competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or changing opportunities, technologies and client
requirements and may be able to undertake more extensive promotional activities, offer more attractive terms to
clients and adopt more aggressive pricing policies. Moreover, current and potential competitors have established or
may establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties or may consolidate to enhance their
services and products. We expect that new competitors or alliances among competitors will emerge and may acquire
significant market share.

ORDER EXECUTION AND CLEARING SERVICES

Our securities order execution services involve filling orders to purchase or sell securities received from
approximately 75 independent broker dealers on behalf of their retail and institutional customers. We typically act as
principal in these transactions and derive our order execution trading revenues, net, from the difference between the
price paid when a security is bought and the price received when that security is sold. Therefore, we seek to take
advantage of daily stock price fluctuations to maximize our revenues. We typically do not receive a fee or
commission for providing order execution services. Approximately 29% of our 2002 revenues, approximately 47%
of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 and approximately 62% of our revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2000 were derived from these services. We reduce the expenses associated with our order execution
services by clearing our own trades. We believe our ability to clear transactions, unlike many other order execution
firms, provides us with a competitive advantage in that we are able to control costs and provide better service. We
normally close out our trade positions at the end of each day and do not maintain securities inventory. This helps us
reduce our exposure to market volatility and lowers our overall risk profile.

We also provide clearing services to other unaffiliated broker dealers. Our clearing services involve
account settlement and delivery functions. To date, we have been engaged by 14 unaffiliated broker dealers to
provide these services.

Order Execution Services

We provide order execution services for equity securities to approximately 75 broker dealers. Our trade
execution capabilities allow us to handle orders telephonically or electronically. Order execution services consist of
filling orders received from independent broker dealers to buy securities or sell securities. We typically act as
principal in these transactions and derive our order execution trading revenue, net, from the difference between the
price we pay when we buy a security and the price we receive when we sell that security. We typically do not
receive a fee or commission for providing order execution services.

Our order execution trading revenues, net, are dependent on our ability to take advantage of daily stock
price fluctuations. Thus, we must be able to evaluate and act rapidly on market trends and manage risk successfully.
Our methodology focuses on the dynamic, real-time analysis of market activity and price movements, which enables
us to increase our revenues and manage risk better. Additionally, we have developed an internal trade order and risk
management software application we refer to as the “e-blotter,” which allows real-time analysis of our trading
positions in individual securities and monitoring of our short and long positions and our aggregate profits and losses.

We normally close out our trade positions at the end of each day and do not maintain securities inventories,
which reduces our exposure to risk from market volatility.



Clearing Operations

Clearing operations include the confirmation, receipt, settlement, custody and delivery functions involved
in securities transactions. Our clearing capabilities allow us to realize significant cost savings that permit us to
competitively price our services. Performing our own clearing operations allows us to retain customer free credit
balances and securities for use in margin lending activities subject to SEC and NASD rules. In March 2001, we
entered into a three-year agreement with Automated Data Processing, Inc. for the provision of computer services to
support order entry, order routing, securities processing, customer statements, tax reporting, regulatory reporting and
other services necessary to the management of a brokerage clearing business.

The retail customer accounts we clear are carried on a fully disclosed basis with our subsidiary, Advantage
Trading Group, Inc. Our clients’ securities positions and credit balances carry $2,000,000 insurance coverage
through Lloyds of London that is supplemental to standard SIPC protection for clients’ accounts up to $500,000
subject to a limitation of $100,000 for claims for cash balances. All customer credit balances are subject to
immediate withdrawal from our clearing firm, at the discretion of the customer.

We make margin loans to customers collateralized by securities held in their accounts. Margin lending is
subject to the margin requirements of the Federal Reserve and NASD and our internal policies, which are more
stringent than those requirements. Under applicable NASD rules, in the event of a decline in the market value of the
securities in a margin account, we are obligated to require the customer to deposit additional securities or cash in the
account so that at all times the customer’s equity in the account is at least 25% of the value of the securities in the
account. Our internal requirement, however, is that the customer’s equity not fall below 35%. If it does, the
customer will be required to increase the account’s equity to 40%. We also restrict access to margin lending with
regard to trading of certain stocks we determine to be too volatile. Margin lending to customers constitutes the major
portion of the basis on which our net capital requirements are determined under the SEC’s Net Capital Rule. To the
extent these activities expand, our net capital requirements will increase.

We also provide clearing services to unaffiliated broker dealers. We have been engaged by 14 unaffiliated
broker dealers to provide clearing services. We provide an online order entry, execution and information system that
is integrated with our clearing operations. We believe that providing these online capabilities combined with our
clearing services will strengthen our existing relationships with independent broker dealers and will attract
additional broker dealer clients.

We also provide clearing services to our affiliated broker dealer, Empire Financial Group, Inc. and it’s
Empire Capital Management Division of independent registered representatives. Following the proposed spin-off,
Empire Financial plans to use third parties for all of its clearing services.

H

Ancillary Retail Brokerage Services

We offer the following ancillary services:

Securities Borrowing. We borrow securities both to cover short sales and to complete customer transactions
in the event a customer fails to deliver securities by the required settlement date. We collateralize such borrowings
by depositing cash or securities with the lender and receive a rebate, in the case of cash collateral, or pay a fee
calculated to yield a negotiated rate of return. Securities borrowing transactions are executed pursuant to written
agreements with counter parties that require the securities borrowed be marked to market on a daily basis and that
additional collateral be furnished in the event of changes in the market value of the securities. The securities usually
are marked to market on a daily basis through the facilities of the various national clearing organizations. We do not
currently engage in securities lending, but may do so in the future.

Cash Management Services. Customer payments received through the mail or federal wire system are
credited to customer accounts. We also provide cash management services to our customers. For example, funds not
invested in securities earn interest in a credit interest program or can be invested in money market funds.

Account Security. We use a combination of proprietary and industry standard security measures to protect
customers’ assets. Customers are assigned unique account numbers, user identifications and passwords that must be




used each time they log on to our system. We rely on encryption and authentication technology to provide the
security necessary to effect the confidential exchange of information. We do not plan to share customer data with
third parties. '

Technology : ‘

We believe our proprietary systems and software allow us to maintain low fixed processing and labor costs
in our order execution businesses. By developing proprietary software applications, we are able to customize and
better control our operations and reduce our dependence on third-party software vendors. Our proprietary software
applications include a customized trade order and risk management system, which we refer to as the “e-blotter.”
This system allows real-time analysis of our trading positions in individual securities and reduces our potential
exposure to losses from trade volatility. We have also developed and expect to implement a web-based order system
that directly links our broker dealer retail customers to our order execution services employees. This system allows
us to process trade transactions more effectively by maximizing the use of our execution and clearing services in
trade orders we receive. :

We utilize local consultants and also outsource software development projects to off-shore contractors for
rapid application development at economical rates. We have entered into independent contractor arrangements with
these individuals on an as-needed basis to assist with programming and developing proprietary technologies. We .
also use certain third party technology vendors when we deem it more cost effective than building the technology
ourselves.

Strategic Marketing Efforts -

We are developing a comprehensive marketing plan to attract more clients and broker dealers to clear their
trades through us, as well as build market awareness, educate the investing public about our services and broaden
and enhance brand name recognition and loyalty. We are actively pursuing additional alliances with various
companies to increase trading volume and operational efficiencies, to further enhance name recognition and to
diversify our income stream. In addition, we regularly examine new ways to provide additional products and
services to our current clients, as well as new clients, including, for example, banks and other financial institutions
seeking to provide expanded services to their customers.

Competition

We provide order execution services for equity securities to approximately 75 independent broker dealers.
The market for these services is rapidly evolving and intensely competitive. We expect competition to continue to
intensify in the future. We compete primarily with wholesale, national and regional broker dealers and trade
execution firms such as Knight/Trimark Group and Schwab Capital Markets, as well as electronic communications
networks, which provide a direct trading venue to institutional and retail investors. We compete primarily on the
basis of execution quality, customer service and technology.

Some of the strongest competition comes from companies who have greater marketing, financial and
technical resources than ours. These competitors can offer a wider range of services and financial products than we
can. Some of our competitors also have greater name recognition and more extensive client bases. These
competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or changing opportunities, technologies and client
requirements and may be able to undertake more extensive promotional activities, offer more attractive terms to
clients and adopt more aggressive pricing policies. Moreover, current and potential competitors have established or
may establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties or may consolidate to enhance their
services and products. We expect that new competltors or alliances among competitors will emerge and may acquire
significant market share.



Government Regulation
(i) Broker Dealer Regulation

The securities industry is subject to extensive regulation under federal and state law. The SEC is the federal
agency responsible for administering the federal securities laws. In general, broker dealers are required to register
with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or the Exchange Act. Our subsidiaries, Empire Financial
Group, Inc. and Advantage Trading Group, Inc., are broker dealers registered with the SEC. Under the Exchange
Act, every registered broker dealer that does business with the public is required to be a member of and is subject to
the rules of the NASD. The NASD has established conduct rules for all securities transactions among broker dealers
and private investors, trading rules for the over-the-counter markets and operational rules for its member firms. The
NASD conducts examinations of member firms, investigates possible violations of the federal securities laws and its
own rules, and conducts disciplinary proceedings involving member firms and associated individuals. The NASD
administers qualification testing for all securities principals and registered representatives for its own account and on
behalf of the state securities authorities.

We are also subject to regulation under state law. Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Advantage Trading
Group, Inc. are registered as broker dealers in all 50 states and in Puerto Rico. An amendment to the federal
securities laws prohibits the states from imposing substantive requirements on broker dealers that exceed those
imposed under federal law. This amendment, however, does not preclude the states from imposing registration
requirements on broker dealers that operate within their jurisdiction or from sanctioning these broker dealers for
engaging in misconduct.

(ii) Net Capital Requirements; Liquidity

As registered broker dealers and members of the NASD, Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Advantage
Trading Group, Inc. are subject to the Net Capital Rule. The Net Capital Rule, which specifies minimum net capital
requirements for registered broker dealers, is designed to measure the general financial integrity and liquidity of a
broker dealer and requires that at least a minimum part of its assets be kept in relatively liquid form. In general, net
capital is defined as net worth (assets minus liabilities), plus qualifying subordinated borrowings and certain
discretionary liabilities, and less certain mandatory deductions that result from excluding assets that are not readily
convertible into cash and from valuing conservatively certain other assets. Among these deductions are adjustments .
which reflect the possibility of a decline in the market value of an asset prior to disposition.

Failure to maintain the required net capital may subject a firm to suspension or revocation of registration by
the SEC and suspension or expulsion by the NASD and other regulatory bodies and ultimately could require the
firm’s liquidation. The Net Capital Rule prohibits payments of dividends, redemption of stock, the prepayment of
subordinated indebtedness and the making of any unsecured advance or loan to a shareholder, employee or affiliate,
if the payment would reduce the firm’s net capital below a certain level.

The Net Capital Rule also provides that the SEC may restrict for up to 20 business days any withdrawal of
equity capital, or unsecured loans or advances to shareholders, employees or affiliates if the capital withdrawal,
together with all other net capital withdrawals during a 30-day period, exceeds 30% of excess net capital and the
SEC concludes that the capital withdrawal may be detrimental to the financial integrity of the broker dealer. In
addition, the Net Capital Rule provides that the total outstanding principal amount of certain of a broker dealer’s
subordinated indebtedness, the proceeds of which are included in its net capital, may not exceed 70% of the sum of
the outstanding principal amount of all subordinated indebtedness included in net capital, par or stated value of
capital stock, paid in capital in excess of par, retained earnings and other capital accounts for a period in excess of
90 days.

Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Advantage Trading Group, Inc. are members of the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation which provides, in the event of the liquidation of a broker dealer, protection for clients’
accounts up to $500,000, subject to a limitation of $100,000 for claims for cash balances. We also carry $2,000,000
additional insurance through Lloyds of London on client accounts that we clear.
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(iii) Investment Advisers Act

Our subsidiary, Empire Investment Advisers, Inc., is registered with the SEC as an investment adviser
under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. Registration by the SEC does not represent an endorsement of Empire
Investment Advisers, Inc. by the SEC. Empire Investment Advisers, Inc. must comply with rules that govern the
way it conducts its business, including the information that must be given to clients, records that must be
maintained, compliance procedures and ethical requirements that must be enforced, and terms that must be included
in advisory agreements. As an investment adviser, Empire Investment Advisers, Inc. is a fiduciary for its clients, and
must act with loyalty and care in the performance of its duties.

(iv) Additional Regulation

Due to the increasing popularity and use of the Internet and other online services, various regulatory
authorities are considering laws and/or regulations with respect to the Internet or other online services covering
issues such as user privacy, pricing, copyrights and quality of services: The growth and development of the market
for online commerce may prompt more stringent consumer protection laws that may impose additional burdens on
those companies conducting business online. Moreover, the recent increase in the number of complaints by online
traders could lead to more stringent regulations of online trading firms and their practices by the SEC, NASD and
other regulatory agencies.

Furthermore, the applicability to the Internet and other online services of existing laws in various
Jurisdictions governing issues such as property ownership, sales and other taxes and personal privacy is uncertain
and may take years to resolve. As our services are available over the Internet in multiple states and foreign countries,
and as we have numerous clients residing in these states and foreign countries, these jurisdictions may claim that we
are required to qualify to do business as a foreign corporation in each such state and foreign country.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, we had 61 full-time employees and 125 independent contractors. Of these, there
were § employees in management, 33 employees providing operation and client support for our retail and order
execution and clearing services, and 20 employees providing order execution services to our correspondents and
retail client base. The independent contractors provide retail services to our customers. No employee is covered by a
collective bargaining agreement or is represented by a labor union. We consider our employee and independent
contractor relations to be good.

Facilities

Our principal executive offices consist of 11,800 square feet of a 19,400 square foot facility located in
Longwood, Florida. This facility is owned by G&G Holdings, Inc., an entity owned by Kevin M. Gagne and Richard
L. Goble. Our subsidiaries Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Advantage Trading Group, Inc. have each entered into
leases with G&G Holdings, Inc. which expire on May 31, 2009 and provide for an average rent of approximately
$23,000 per month, plus sales and property taxes.

We also have approximately 31 fully independent branch offices throughout the United States. We do not
have lease agreements for our branch offices or any direct financial commitment. The rent for these facilities is an
obligation of the independent contractors who are located in each of them.

We have also entered into a one year lease to accommodate the sales support staff of the Empire Capital
Management Division. This administrative office is located at 1536 Dunwoody Village Parkway in Atlanta, Georgia
and has two full-time employees. The monthly payment on this facility is $1,152.

Item 2. Legal Proceedings

Our business involves substantial risks of liability, including exposure to liability under federal and state
securities laws in connection with the underwriting or distribution of securities and claims by dissatisfied clients for
fraud, unauthorized trading, churning, mismanagement and breach of fiduciary duty. In recent years there has been
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an increasing incidence of litigation involving the securities industry, including class action which generally seek
rescission and substantial damages.

In the ordinary course of business, we and our principals are, and may become a party to legal or regulatory
proceedings or arbitrations. We are not currently involved in any legal or regulatory proceeding or arbitrations, the
outcome of which is expected to have a material adverse impact on our business.

Item 3.  Submission Of Matters To A Vote Of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2002.
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PART I

Item4. Market For Common Equity And Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock began trading on the American Stock Exchange (ASE) on April 9, 2002 under the
symbol “EFH”. Set forth below is high and low price information for the common stock as reported on the ASE for
each period presented.

2002 - High Sales Price Low Sales Price

Second Quarter $ 4.00 $ 3.80
Third Quarter 1.75 1.60
Fourth Quarter 92 91
2003 High Sales Price Low Sales Price
First Quarter (through March 27) $ 1.30 $ 89

As of March 28, 2003, there were 254 holders of record of the common stock.

We paid dividends to our shareholders in the past. Prior to completion of our IPO, we were an S
corporation for federal and state income tax purposes and our taxable income was taxed directly to our initial
shareholders. We distributed $1,200,000 to our initial shareholders in April 2001 related to their tax liability for our
taxable income for 2000 and we distributed a total of $732,294 in April and October 2002 related to their tax
liability for our taxable income for 2001.

In October 2002 we made a partial distribution of approximately $135,000 and we plan to make an
additional distribution of approximately $160,000 to the initial shareholders related to their personal income taxes
arising from our taxable income from January 1, 2002 until completion of the IPO in April 2002.

We became a C corporation effective with the consummation of our IPO and, except as noted above, we do
not intend to pay any dividends to our shareholders for the foreseeable future. We intend to retain any earnings to
finance the development and expansion of our business. Payment of dividends in the future will be subject to the
discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our ability to generate eamings, our need for capital and our
overall financial condition among other factors.

Our Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-86365, was declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 9, 2002. The offer and sale of all of the 1,000,000 shares of our
common stock, $.01 par value per share, registered by the Registration Statement occurred on April 9, 2002. The
underwriters of the offering were Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. and Empire Financial Group, Inc., one of our
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

The aggregate price of the shares offered and sold pursuant to the Registration Statement was $6,000,000.
The total expenses we incurred relating to the offering was $957,384, including underwriting commissions and other
fees. Of this amount, $230,000 involved payments to Empire Financial Group, Inc. and the remaining balance
involved payments to others. The net offering proceeds to us after deducting the total expenses incurred in the
offering was $5,042,616. Of the net proceeds we used approximately $1.7 million for the purchase of Centennial
Capital Management, approximately $1.1 million to repurchase our stock and approximately $400,000 for general
corporate expenses. The remaining stock and approximately $1.8 million is included in our working capital. We
determined following the offering that repurchasing stock for the purpose of stabilizing the price was an appropriate
use of funds that had not been contemplated at the time of the IPO. The business initiatives discussed in our
prospectus under use of proceeds have not yet been undertaken and we are evaluating the proper use of our working
capital,
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During April and November 2002, we repurchased 212,200 shares of our common stock sold in the public
offering. This was done to stabilize the market for our stock. The total cost of the common stock purchased was
$1,135,197 and is included as treasury stock on the accompanying statement of financial condition.

Effective April 9, 2002, we granted 677,950 stock options pursuant to our 2000 Incentive Compensation
Plan at a price of $6.00, which was the offering price in our initial public offering as of that date. Of the total stock
options, 340,200 vest over a five year schedule commencing April 9, 2002. The remaining 200,000 vested
immediately upon grant, however, only 100,000 can be sold during the first twelve months commencing April 9,
2002, and thereafter, 20,000 may be sold per year on a cumulative basis.
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Item 5. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidate financial data is qualified by reference to, and should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” appearing elsewhere in this report. Prior
to our IPO in April 2002, we were taxed as S Corporations, and, accordingly, our taxable income has been taxed
directly to our shareholders. Unaudited pro forma information assumes that we were subject to federal income taxes

and taxed as a C corporation at the statutory rates for the periods presented.

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Statement of Income Data:
Revenues:
Order execution trading: .

TEVENUES, NEL ..cviveririinmircercrinnnee $4,886,933 $7,724,244 $14,117,905 $10,441,910 $5,681,892
Commissions and fees..................... 13,001,503 10,428,857 10,939,186 6,134,454 2,022,433
Order flow.....ccovvviiicnnnnncecnne 37,968 52,005 456,184 102,806 149,246

' 349,732 741,812 2,694,630 829,381 66,675
204,572 563,341 234,784 89,752 13,753
$18,480,708 $19,510,259 $28,442 689 $17,598,303 $7,933,999
Expenses:
Employee compensation and ’

benefits......cocovviieirieicreennienae $7,934,805 7,545,078 11,541,916 5,938,502 2,715,069
Commission and clearing :

COSES orrerrvireemimicnrerssiecsenserarecnns 6,672,360 4,210,434 3,821,323 1,631,139 1,345,528
Order flow payments... 1,001,593 2,183,296 3,391,663 2,775,599 1,661,488
INterest ....ceccrrrnmnree et 76,881 582,301 1,130,222 463,345 44,363
Communications and data :

processing ............... [RURRRO 762,036 527,474 1,242,610 807,187 179,975
General and administrative ............. 3,426,608 2,629,370 4,183,744 1,923,101 627,699
AdVertising ........ccecovvnivveinnnceenens 82,019 297,025 533,634 601,104 269,293
Impairment 1088 .....oovvevererieiiicenns 1,001,474 -

' 20,957,776 17,974,978 25,845,112 14,139,977 6,843,415
Net income (10S8)......cooveermrercereicnnne (2,477,068) $1,535,281 $2,597,577 $3,458,326 $1,090,584
Earnings (loss) per share —
basic and diluted .......ccccorrrerririrenen. (80.54) $ 038 $ 0.65 $ 0.86 $ 027
Unaudited pro forma
information:
Income (loss) before income

LBXES et reieeer e narescee e enene (2,477,068) $1,535,281 $2,597,577 $3,458,326 $1,090,584
Provision for income taxes.............. 0 577,700 977,500 1,300,000 410,000
Net income (1088).....c.oovvvveeeerernrucnes (2,477,068) . $957,581 $1,620,077 $2,158,326 $680,584
Pro forma earnings (loss) per

share — basic and diluted.......... (80.54) $ _o0x $ o4l § 054 $§ 017
Weighted average shares

outstanding — basic and

diluted ......ccoonmeriiecnneeees 4,587,494 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Balance Sheet Data (at period
end):
Total @SSELS ...c.evorvrvecerimreniernrceicninas $13,494,633 $17,575,416 $18,551,857 $22,166,240 $8,860,788
Total liabilities .......ccccoormvecevrnrnnenn 9,608,500 14,605,340 15,174,912 19,016,198 6,921,498
Shareholders’ equity .....ccocccevrernecrennne. 3,886,133 2,970,076 3,376,945 3,150,042 1,939,250
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Item 6. Management’s Discussion And Analysis

Introduction

We were incorporated in Florida during February 2000. Our business is conducted entirely through our
wholly owned subsidiaries. We acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Empire Financial Group, Inc. and
Advantage Trading Group, Inc. from our co-chief executive officers, co-presidents and co-chairmen of the board,
Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble, the former co-owners of these entities pursuant to a share exchange
agreement. We subsequently formed Empire Investment Advisors, Inc. Accordingly, the following discussion and
analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on the combined results of these businesses.

Empire Financial Group, Inc. is our financial brokerage services subsidiary providing discount brokerage
services directly to retail and institutional customers. Qur retail customers can place their securities orders online
through our secure website located at www.empirenow.com or over the telephone at 1-800-lowfees (1-800-569-
3337). We provide our retail customers access to useful financial products and services through our website and by
telephone. Our customers may, upon request, also receive advice from our brokers regarding mutual funds and
bonds. Our brokers do not provide advice regarding specific equity securities or options.

Empire Financial Group, Inc. also provides services to unaffiliated broker dealers and other financial
institutions that want to provide expanded services to their retail customers under their own brand label. We refer to
this as private label brokerage services. As of December 31, 2002 we provided private label brokerage services to 12
financial institutions. We provide their retail customers with the same level of service and full range of products
offered to our own retail customers. We also charge our client’s customer commissions and fees similar to those
charged to our own retail customers. We pay these institutions fees based on transaction volume generated by their
retail customers.

In July 2001, we purchased specified assets of Centennial Capital Management Inc., consisting primarily of
contract rights with independent registered representatives with an estimated useful life of approximately 3.3 years,
and assumed specified liabilities, primarily contract obligations. Centennial was in the business of processing
securities transactions for, and providing other support services to, independent registered representatives located
throughout the United States. After we completed this transaction, most of these independent registered
representatives began to process securities transactions through us. For a fee and a participation in their revenues, we
provide these representatives with back office support, client statements and reports, branch office regulatory
compliance and advisory services. These representatives typically pay all of their office and marketing expenses.
The addition of these registered representatives did not require us to hire any additional support staff personnel,
except for two prior employees of Centennial Management. We did, however, open an administrative office in
Atlanta, Georgia.

The purchase price was based upon the revenues generated by the former Centennial independent
registered representatives who chose to process securities transactions through us during the three months ended
December 31, 2001, and was determined to be approximately $2,126,000.

During September 2002, we acquired certain assets of U S Rica and Star Financial for our domestic
brokerage operations for cash consideration of $144,464. U S Rica and Star Financial were in the business of
processing securities transactions for, and providing other support services to, independent registered representatives
located throughout the United States. After we completed this transaction, most of these independent registered
representatives began to process securities transactions through us. For a fee and a participation in their revenues, we
provide these representatives with back office support, client statements and reports, branch office regulatory
compliance and advisory services.

In May 2001, we began offering fee-based investment advisory services to our customers, independent
registered investment advisors and unaffiliated broker dealers through our wholly owned subsidiary Empire
Investment Advisors. These services are web-based and are delivered through a platform that combines a variety of
independent third party providers. Services include access to separate account money managers, managed mutual
fund portfolios, asset allocation tools, separate account manager and mutual fund research, due diligence and
quarterly performance review. We charge our customers an all-inclusive fee for these services, which is based on
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assets under management. As of March 31, 2003 the annual fee is equal to approximately 85 basis points times the
assets under management.

Advantage Trading Group, Inc., our securities order execution subsidiary, provides execution services
involving filling orders to purchase or sell securities received from approximately 75 independent broker dealers on
behalf of their retail customers. We typically act as principal in these transactions and derive our order execution
trading revenues, net, from the difference between the price paid when a security is bought and the price received
when that security is sold. We typically do notreceive a fee or commission for providing order exécution services.
At the end of each day, we normally close out our trade positions and do not maintain securities inventory in order
to reduce our risks from market volatility.

Advantage Trading Group, In¢. added clearing capabilities for our order execution business in 1996 and for
our financial brokerage services business in 1998. Prior to that, we cleared all of our customer equity and option
transactions through third-party clearing firms that processed our trades, prepared transaction confirmations and
acted as the custodian for our customers’ securities. Clearing services involve the confirmation, receipt, settlement,
custody and delivery functions involved in securities transactions. We began hiring associates to perform these
functions in August 1997 and incurred significant non-recurring costs to hire and train our associates, as well as
systems integration costs during this period. The addition of clearing capabilities has allowed us to clear almost all
of our total trades and to realize significant cost savings that allow us to competitively price our services. Our direct
costs per transaction that we clear have decreased approximately 67% since implementing clearing operations.

As of December 31, 2002, our subsidiary, Advantage Trading Group, Inc., provided clearing services for
approximately 75% of the transactions initiated by our subsidiary Empire Financial Group, Inc. including
approximately 90% of Empire Financial Group, Inc.’s retail transactions. In addition Advantage provides clearing
services to 14 unaffiliated broker dealers.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Because we operate in the financial services industry, we follow certain
accounting guidance used by the brokerage industry. Our consolidated balance sheet is not separated into current
and noncurrent assets and liabilities. Certain financial assets, such as investment securities are carried at fair market
value on our consolidated statements of financial condition while other assets are carried at historic values.

Use of Estimates
Note 2 to Consolidated Financial Statements contains a summary of our significant accounting policies,
many of which require the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements for the periods presented. We believe that of our significant accounting policies, the valuation

of customer lists (see also Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements) is based on estimates and assumptions that
require complex, subjective judgments which can materially impact reported result.

Market-Making Activities
Securities owned and securities sold, not yet purchased, which primarily consist of listed and OTC stocks

and listed option contracts, are carried at market value and are recorded on a trade date basis. Market value is
estimated daily using market quotations available from major securities exchanges and dealers.

Sources and Description of Revenues
Order execution trading revenues, net
Approximately 29.9% of our 2002 revenues, approximately 47% of our 2001 revenues, and approximately

62% of our revenues for 2000 consist of order execution trading revenues, net. Order execution revenues are
- generated from the difference between the price we pay to buy securities and the price we are paid when we sell
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securities. Volatility of stock prices, which can result in significant price fluctuations in short periods of time, may
result in trading gains or losses. Our order execution trading revenues are dependent on our ability to evaluate and
act rapidly on market trends and manage risk successfully. We typically act as principal in these transactions and do
not receive a fee or commission for providing order execution services.

Commissions and fees

Approximately 70% of our 2002 revenues, approximately 53% of our 2001 revenues and approximately
38% of our revenues for 2000 consist of commissions and fees. Commissions and fees include revenues generated
from transactional fees charged to retail and institutional customers. Commissions and fees also include mutual fund
transaction commissions and trailer fees, which are periodic fees paid by mutual funds as an incentive to keep assets
invested with them over time. Transactional fees charged to retail and institutional customers are primarily affected
by changes in transaction volumes and changes in the commission or fee rates charged per transaction. The
significant growth in our daily average trading volumes in the U.S. and major global equities markets, combined
with our introduction of online trading services, has increased our trading volume.

Order flow

Less than 1% of our 2002 and 2001 revenues and approximately 2% of our revenues for 2000 consist of
order flow payments. We send retail transactions to other broker dealers for execution in exchange for monthly
payments, referred to as order flow payments, based on the number of shares involved in the transactions.

Interest

Approximately 2% of our 2002 revenues, approximately 4% of our 2001 revenues and approximately 9%
of our revenues for 2000 consist of interest revenues. Interest revenues consist of profits from the interest we charge
retail customers when they borrow from us, as well as interest earned on our interest-bearing assets.

Other

Approximately 1% of our 2002 revenues, approximately 3% of our 2001 revenues and approximately 1%
of our revenues for 2000 consist of other income. Other income derives from miscellaneous fees (other than the
order execution trading revenues, net and commissions and fees described above) charged to clients.

Description of Operating Expenses
Employee compensation and benefits

Employee compensation and benefits, which include salaries and wages, incentive compensation and
related employee benefits and taxes, are our largest operating expenses, accounting for approximately 38% of our
expenses during 2002, approximately 42% of our expenses during 2001 and approximately 45% of our expenses for
2000. Our registered representatives, who make up approximately 80% of our employees, are compensated
primarily on a performance basis. Therefore, a significant portion of compensation and benefits expense will
fluctuate based on our operating revenue.

Commissions and clearing costs

Commissions and clearing costs include commissions paid to independent brokers, fees paid to floor
brokers and exchanges for trade execution costs, fees paid to third-party vendors for data processing services and
fees paid to clearing entities for certain clearance and settlement services. Commissions and clearing costs generally
fluctuate based on transaction volume. Approximately 32% of our 2002 expenses, approximately 23% of our 2001
fiscal year expenses and approximately 15% of our expenses for 2000 consist of commissions and clearing costs.

Order flow payments

We make payments to other broker dealers to compensate them for directing trades to us for execution. We
make these payments monthly based on either per share prices or total transaction value. Approximately 5% of our
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2002 expenses, approximately 12% of our 2001 expenses and approx1mately 13% of our expenses for 2000 consist
of order flow payments. v

Interest

Interest expenses consist of interest charges associated with our interest- bearing liabilities such as customer
credit balances and draws against our short-term bank loan, accounting for less than-1% of our 2002 expenses,
approximately 3% of our expenses during 2001 and approximately 4% for 2000.

Communications and data processing

Communications and data processing expenses consist primarily of costs related to our computer systems.
Communications expenses include costs associated with traditional communications expenses, such as voice
telephone, and the costs to maintain our Internet access capabilities. These costs also include amounts paid to
provide customers access to automated quote information, stock and option orders or account balance information.
Approximately 4% of our 2002 expenses, approximately 3% or our 2001 expenses and approximately 5% of our
expenses for 2000 consist of communications and data processing.

General and administrative

Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of legal, accounting and other professional fees,
software consulting fees, travel and entertainment expenses, insurance coverage, depreciation, occupancy expenses
and other similar operating expenses, and accounted for approximately 16% of our expenses for 2002,
approximately 15% of our expenses during 2001 and approximately 16% of our expenses for 2000.

Advertising

Advertising expenses include television, online, print and direct mail advertising expenses and other costs
incurred to create brand awareness, promote our product and service offerings and introduce new products and
services. These expenses accounted for less than 1% of our expenses in 2002 and approximately 2% of our expenses
during 2001 and 2000.

Results of Operations
December 31, 2002 Compared with December 31, 2001

In July 2001, we acquired certain assets of Centennial Capital Management, Inc., a securities broker dealer
that provides a diversified range of retail brokerage services through independent financial advisors located in 50
states. Approximately five months of the Centennial operations, $2,366,000 and $1,925,000 of revenues and
expenses, respectively, are included in our operating results for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Total revenues for year ended December 31, 2002 decreased $1,029,551, or 5%, to $18,480,708 from
$19,510,259 reported for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease was primarily due to the reasons
described below:

e  Order execution trading revenues, net in 2002 decreased $2,837,311, or 37%, to $4,886,933 from
$7,724,244 in 2001, primarily due to an approximate 30% decrease in the number of order execution
transactions and a decrease of approximately 7% in the profitability per order execution transaction
primarily as a result of decimalization. The number of order execution trade transactions decreased
from 240,825 during 2001 to 169,225 during 2002 due to a decline in the market and the economy.

s Commissions and fee revenues in 2002 increased $2,572,646, or 25% to $13,001,503 from
$10,428,857 1n 2001, primarily due to an increase in revenues earned from the Centennial, U S Rica
and Star Financial operations. In 2002, we processed approximately 149,400 transactions for our retail
customers, versus approximately 134,000 in 2001, an increase of approximately 12%. Furthermore,
our retail customer accounts totaled approximately 31,382 at December 31, 2002 compared to
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approximately 27,935 at December 31, 2001, an increase of approximately 12%, or a decrease of
approximately 11% after reducing the December 31, 2002 total by approximately 6,500 retail customer
accounts added through acquisitions. In addition, clearing fees in 2002 increased $722,184 or 118% to
$1,333,465 from $611,281 in 2001. This increase in clearing fees revenue is attributable to the
increase in transactions cleared.

Order flow revenues in 2002 decreased $14,037, or 27%, to $37,968 from $52,005 in 2000, primarily
reflecting a decrease in the number of trades for which order flow payments were received by us,

Interest revenues in 2002 decreased $392,080, or approximately 53%, to $349,732 in 2002 from
$741,812 in 2001 a decrease primarily attributable to a decrease in retail customers’ margin account
balances. The average month end customer margin balance for the year ended December 31, 2002 was
$6,425,300, compared to $9,155,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, a decrease of $2,729,700,
or 30%. This decrease is offset by the decrease in interest expense paid during 2002.

Other revenues in 2002 decreased $358,769, or 64%, to $204,572 from $563,341 in 2001, primarily as
a result of the decrease in miscellaneous income and fee revenues.

Total operating expenses in 2002 increased $2,982,798, or 17%, to $20,957,776 from $17,974,978 in 2001,
primarily due to reasons described below:

%

Commissions and clearing costs in 2002 increased $2,461,926, or 58.5% to $6,672,360 from
$4,210,434 in 2001. This increase is primarily attributable to commissions and related costs incurred in
connection with the retail operations acquired from Centennial, U S Rica and Star Financial partially
offset by the overall decrease in volume and clearing costs associated with our existing institutional
and retail operations. In 2002, we processed 149,400 transactions for our institutional and retail
customers versus 134,000 in 2001, an increase of approximately 12%. When compared to related
revenues, commissions and clearing costs increased by a greater percentage because of costs incurred
in connection with the acquisitions consummated during 2002 , partially offset by savings realized
through our clearing operations.

Order flow payments decreased $1,181,703, or 54%, to $1,001,593 in 2002 from $2,183,296 in 2001.
This decrease is primarily attributable to a reduction in the number of trade transactions that required
order flow payments.

Interest expense in 2002 decreased $505,420, or 87%, to $76,881 from $582,301 in 2001, primarily
due to a decrease in interest incurred on short-term borrowings and interest paid on customer credit
balances. A portion of the decrease is attributable to smaller customer credit balances for which we pay
interest. The average outstanding month end customer credit balance was approximately $7,209,000 in
2002, as compared to approximately $7,581,000 in 2001. The remaining decrease is attributable to
decreased borrowings and lower interest rates on our short-term borrowing arrangement. At December
31, 2002 we had no short term borrowings outstanding and at December 31, 2001 our interest rate on
short-term borrowing was 3%.

Communications and data processing expenses in 2002 increased $234,562, or 44%, to $762,036 from
$527,474 in 2001. This increase is primarily attributable to the addition of “non-capitalized”
equipment to our “back office” platform, increasing our costs by approximately $185,700 from 2001.
Our system technology has been changed, thereby reducing costs while increasing our capacity to
serve our customer base.

General and administrative expenses in 2002 increased $797,237, or 30%, to $3,426,608 from
$2,629,370 in 2001. This increase is primarily attributable to the increase of approximately $675,000
for amortization of intangible assets, the increase of $131,000 in computer consulting expenses,
$110,000 in stationary, printing, and office supplies, $153,000 in rental expense, $72,557 in
professional fees and $81,702 in client entertainment and marketing.
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e  Advertising expenses in 2002 decreased $215,006, or 72%, to $82,019 from $297,025 in 2001. This
decrease in advertising was primarily due to ongoing changes in our overall marketing program, which
includes an increasing use of Internet and other “non-traditional” marketing venues while decreasing

the use of traditional marketing venues. As a percentage of total revenues, advertising expenses were
approximately 0.5% in 2002 and 2% in each of 2001 and 2000.

e We performed an impairment analysis of our intangible assets. A “one time” adjustment of
approximately $1.001 million was charged to expense, increasing the December 31, 2002 operating
loss.

As aresult of the foregoing factors, net income in 2002 decreased $4,012,349 to ($2,477,068) compared to
$1,535,281 in 2001. '

December 31, 2001 Compared with December 31, 2000

In July 2001, we acquired certain assets of Centennial Capital Management, Inc., a securities broker dealer
that provides a diversified range of retail brokerage services through independent financial advisors located in 50
states. Approximately five months of the Centennial operations, $2,366,000 and $1,925,000 of revenues and
expenses, respectively, are included in our operating results for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Total revenues for year ended December 31, 2001 decreased $8,932,430, or 31%, to $19,510,259 from
$28,442,689 reported for the year ended December 31, 2000. This decrease was primarily due to the reasons
described below:

o  Order execution trading revenues, net in 2001 decreased $6,393,661, or 45%, to $7,724,244 from
$14,117,905 in 2000, primarily due to an approximate 20% decrease in the number of order execution
transactions and a decrease of approximately 39% in the profitability per order execution transaction
primarily as a result of decimalization. The number of order execution trade transactions decreased
from 302,806 during 2000 to 240,825 during 2001.

e Commissions and fee revenues in 2001 decreased $510,329, or 5% to $10,428,857 from $10,939,186
in 2000, primarily due to a decrease in retail trading volume, partially offset by $2,366,000 in revenues
earned from the Centennial operations. In 2001, we processed approximately 134,000 transactions for
our retail customers, versus approximately 143,000 in 2000, a decrease of approximately 6%.
Furthermore, our retail customer accounts totaled approximately 27,935 at December 31, 2001
compared to approximately 11,340 at December 31, 2000, an increase of approximately 146%, or
approximately 5% after reducing the December 31, 2001 total by approximately 16,000 retail customer
accounts added with the acquisition of Centennial. This decrease is also attributable to a decrease in
clearing fees in 2002 decreased $70,34, or 10% to $611,281 from $681,657 in 2000. The decrease in
clearing fees revenue is attributable to the decrease in transactions cleared.

¢ Order flow revenues in 2001 decreased $404,179, or 89%, to $52,003 from $456,184 in 2000,
primarily reflecting a decrease in the number of trades for which order flow payments were received
by us.

¢ Interest revenues in 2001 decreased $1,952,818, or 72%, to $741,812 in 2001 from $2,694,630 in
2000, a decrease primarily attributable to a decrease in retail customers’ margin account balances. The
average month end customer margin balance for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $9,155,000,
compared to $20,107,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $10,952,000, or 54%.

e Other revenues in 2001 increased $328,557, or 140%, to $563,341 from $234,784 in 2000, primarily as
a result of the increase in miscellaneous income and fee revenues.
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Total operating expenses in 2001 decreased $7,870,134, or 30%, to $17,974,978 from $25,845,112 in 2000,
primarily due to reasons described below:

¢ Employee compensation and benefits in 2001 decreased $3,996,838, or 35%, to $7,545,078 from
$11,541,916 in 2000. The decrease in employee compensation and benefits was primarily due to a
decrease in the number of employees. At December 31, 2001 we employed 65 people as compared to
100 people at December 31, 2000, a decrease of 35%.

e Commissions and clearing costs in 2001 increased $389,111, or 10% to $4,210,434 from $3,821,323 in
2000. This increase is primarily attributable to commissions and related costs incurred in connection
with the retail operations acquired from Centennial, partially offset by the overall decrease in volume
and clearing costs associated with our existing institutional and retail operations. In 2001, we
processed 134,474 transactions for our institutional and retail customers versus 142,756 in 2000, a
decrease of approximately 6%. When compared to related revenues, commissions and clearing costs
increased by a greater percentage because of costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of
Centennial, partially offset by savings realized through our clearing operations.

e  Order flow payments decreased $1,208,367, or 36%, to $2,183,296 in 2001 from $3,391,663 in 2000.
This decrease is primarily attributable to a reduction in the number of trade transactions that required
order flow payments.

o Interest expense in 2001 decreased $547,921, or 49%, to $582,301 from $1,130,222 in 2000, primarily
due to a decrease in interest incurred on short-term borrowings and interest paid on customer credit
balances. A portion of the decrease is attributable to smaller customer credit balances for which we pay
interest. The average outstanding month end customer credit balance was approximately $7,581,000 in
2001, as compared to approximately $13,205,000 in 2000. The remaining decrease is attributable to
decreased borrowings and lower interest rates on our short-term borrowing arrangement. At December
31, 2001 and 2000, our interest rate on short-term borrowing was 2.75% and 7.0%, respectively.

¢ Communications and data processing expenses in 2001 decreased $715,136, or 58%, to $527,474 from
$1,242,610 in 2000. This decrease is primarily attributable to the overall decrease in volume of
transactions processed for order execution and retail trades, costs savings associated with a change in
vendors providing certain data processing services, and costs savings incurred in connection with the
continued growth of our clearing operations.

¢  General and administrative expenses in 2001 decreased $1,534,374, or 37%, t0 $2,629,370 from
$4,183,744 in 2000. This decrease is primarily attributable to a decrease of approximately $854,000 for
costs incurred in connection with a discontinued registration filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (primarily professional fees, filing and registration fees, and printing costs), $442,000 in
computer consulting expenses, $37,000 in depreciation expense, $99,000 in stationary, printing, and
office supplies, $154,000 in customer write-offs, $192,000 in travel expenses, $293,000 loss on
disposal of furniture and computers, partially offset by an increase of $31,000 in recruiting expenses
$36,000 in client expenses, $62,000 in insurance expense, $33,000 in professional fees, $26,000 in
seminars and trade shows, $33,000 in quote services, $38,000 in pre-employment expenses, $65,000 in
registration fees, and $266,000 in amortization of customer list.

e Advertising expenses in 2001 decreased $236,609, or 44%, to $297,025 from $533,634 in 2000. This
decrease in advertising was primarily due to ongoing changes in our overall marketing program, which
includes an increase use of the Internet and volume discount purchasing of television space for
advertising our products. As a percentage of total revenues, advertising expenses were approximately
2% in each of 2001 and 2000.

As a result of the foregoing factors, net income in 2001 decreased $1,062,296, or 41%, to $1,535,281

compared to $2,597,577 in 2000. Net income does not reflect provisions for income taxes, given that we were an
§ corporation prior to our IPO in April 2002.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We maintain a highly liquid balance sheet with the majority of our assets consisting of cash and cash
equivalents and receivables from customers, brokers, dealers and clearing brokers arising from customer-related
securities transactions. Receivables from customers consist primarily of collateralized customer margin loans, which
are typically secured with marketable equity securities.

At December 31, 2002, we had shareholder’s equity of $3,886,133, representing an increase of $916,057
from December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2001, we had shareholders’ equity of $2,970,076, representing a
decrease of $406,869 from shareholders’ equity of $3,376,945 December 31, 2000. Cash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2002 were $4,146,857 compared to $2,327,029 at December 31, 2001 and $3,195,892 at December
31, 2000. . :

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1,828,618 in 2002 and $3,362,392 in 2001 versus
$5,999,454 used in operating activities in 2000. Our net cash provided by or used in operating activities is materially
impacted by changes in the brokerage-related assets and liabilities of our subsidiary, Advantage Trading Group, Inc.

Net cash used in investing activities was $283,113 in 2002, compared to net cash used by investing
activities of $376,150 in 2001 and $190,917 in 2000. The decrease in 2002 was primarily due to a decrease in the
purchase of property and equipment, partially offset by payments made (net of cash acquired) in connection with the
purchase of certain assets and liabilities of US Rica and Star Financial. The decrease in 2001 was primarily due to a
decrease in the purchase of property and equipment, partially offset by payments made (net of cash acquired) in
connection with the purchase of certain assets and liabilities of Centennial.

Net cash provided by financing activities was.$274,323 in 2002, compared to $3,855,150 used in financing
activities for 2001. The net increase in 2002 was due to the issuance of our common stock less the purchase of
treasury stock, payment of short-term borrowings, payment of contracts payable and shareholder distributions. Net
cash used in financing activities was $3,855,150 in 2001, compared to $5,684,986 used by financing activities in
2000. The net decrease in 2001 was due to payments of $1,913,000 on our short-term bank loans plus $1,942,150
distributed to our shareholders.

- - We have entered into three brokerage credit agreements with a commercial bank, pursuant to which the
bank may, without any obligation'to do so, advance to us the lesser of $25,000,000 or a percentage of the market
value of our available collateral that is pledged to the bank. Borrowings under the agreements are due on demand
and bear interest at rates quoted, from time to time, by the bank to us, which is currently the federal funds rate plus
100 basis points. The average interest rates charged by the bank to us were 2.75% during 2002, 5.0% during 2001
and 7.3% during 2000. Our available collateral under these agreements includes securities owned by our customers
in margin accounts and securities owned by us which we elect to pledge to the bank. Our margin agreements with
our customers permit us to pledge their securities as collateral for our bank loans. At December 31, 2002 we had no
securities pledged. As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately $9,121,000 in securities owned by our
customers in margin accounts and approximately $1,894,164 of securities owned by us eligible to pledge to the bank
and could borrow from the bank, to the extent permitted by the bank, at least $6,264,747. The amount owed to the
bank under these agreements was $1,032,000 at December 31, 2001, and it was collateralized by $4,053,000 of
securities owned by our customers in margin accounts that were pledged to the bank. At December 31, 2000, the
aggregate amount owed to the bank was $2,945,000 and was collateralized by $9,315,000 of securities owned by our
customers in margin accounts that were pledged to the bank. The term of our current agreements expire May 31,
2003,

Prior to our JPO in April 2002, we were an S corporation for federal and state income tax purposes and our
taxable income had been taxed directly to our initial shareholders. We distributed $1,200,000 to our shareholders in
April 2001 related to their tax liability for our taxable income for 2000 and distributed $732,294 in April and
October 2002 related to their tax liability for our net income for 2001. In October 2002, we made a partial
distribution of $133,647 and we plan to make an additional distribution of approximately $60,000 to the initial
shareholders related to their income taxes arising from our taxable income from January 1, 2002 until completion of
the IPO.
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Based on currently proposed plans and assumptions relating to the implementation of our business plan, we
believe that our cash flow from operations, cash on hand plus lines of credit, will enable us to fund our planned
operations, for at least 12 months and thereafter. If not, or if our plans change, or our assumptions change or prove
to be inaccurate, or if our operating cash flow otherwise proves to be insufficient to implement our business plans,
we may require additional financing and may seek to raise funds through subsequent equity or debt financings or
other sources. We cannot assure you that additional funds will be available in adequate amounts or on acceptable
terms. If funds are needed but not available, our business would be harmed.

Net Capital Requirements

Our broker dealer subsidiaries, Advantage Trading Group, Inc. and Empire Financial Group, Inc., are
subject to the requirements of the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, This rule requires that aggregate indebtedness, as defined, not exceed 15 times net capital, as defined. Rule
15¢3-1 also provides for an “alternative net capital requirement” which, if elected, requires that net capital be equal
to the greater of $250,000 or 2% of aggregate debit items computed in applying the formula for determination of
reserve requirements. Net capital positions of each of our broker dealer subsidiaries were as follows:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Advantage Trading Group, Inc.:
Alternative method elected
November 1999)
Net capital.....c.ccccovcmervreirnnennninrierenen $2,460,080 $1,798,877 $2,630,281
Required net capital ...........cccovenrenennnn, 250,000 250,000 258,668
Excess net capital........ccccccoevninnncennnn, $2,210,080 $1,548,877 $2,371,613
Net capital as percentage of aggregate
debit items .....cccvnrvrrereercrirrireenenes 30% 16% 20.34%
Empire Financial Group, Inc.:
Net capital .......coveeniniercenecneecncennn, $476,235 $330,491 $877,012
Required net capital .........c.ccceovecrennnne. 250,000 250,000 250,000
Excess net capital......c.cocccernerincennnenn. $226,235 $80,491 $627,012
Ratio of aggregate indebtedness to
net Capital .....ccccoovirieivcninneieens 401tol 490to 1 1.21to1

Subsequent Events

On March 28, 2003, we established two special committees of directors each of which possesses the full
authority of our board of directors. One of the special committees is authorized and empowered to manage the
business and operations of both Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Empire Investment Advisors, Inc. The second
special committee is authorized and empowered to manage the business and operations of Advantage Trading
Group, Inc. The foregoing special committees shall each automatically cease to exist upon the earlier of (a) the
consummation of the spin-off of Advantage Trading Group, Inc. from our company as described below and (b) June

30, 2003.

On March 28, 2003, we entered into a non-binding letter of intent with our principal shareholders, Kevin

M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble, dated March 28, 2003, confirming our interest in effectuating a spin-off of one of
our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Advantage Trading Group, Inc. The consummation of the spin-off is subject to the
execution of a definitive agreement between us and our principal shareholders that would provide for, among other
things, (a) that we would distribute to all holders of our common stock, all shares of the common stock of
Advantage Trading Group, Inc. (b) that we and the principal shareholders shall take all reasonable or necessary
measures to effectuate the spin-off, (c) that each of the principal shareholders will vote in favor of this distribution,
if the Securities and Exchange Commission, the American Stock Exchange or the State of Florida requires approval
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of the spin-off by our shareholders and (d) that the spin-off and other related transactions will be tax free to us and
our shareholders.

The definitive agreement would also provide that subsequent to the consummation of the spin-off, Mr.
Goble and Mr. Gagne would exchange their shares of our common stock and Advantage common stock, so that Mr.
Goble will receive shares of Advantage common stock and Mr. Gagne will receive shares of our common stock.
Following the share exchange, Mr. Goble would own approximately 80% of the Advantage common stock and Mr.
Gagne would own approximately 80% of our common stock.

As noted above, effecting the spin-off is subject to a number of conditions which may not be met.
Therefore, the spin-off may never be consummated.

As aresult of the approval of the proposed spin-off and establishment of the special committees of directors
discussed above, all management and administrative disagreements between our Co-Chairmen of the Board and Co-
Chief Executive Officers have been resolved. However, the Co-Chairmen of the Board and Co-Chief Executive
Officers may disagree in the future regarding management and administrative decisions. Qur bylaws, the Co-
Chairmen’s and Co-Chief Executive Officer’s respective employment agreements and certain resolutions we
adopted provide that our board of directors shall resolve any disagreements that may arise in the future. If the board
of directors does not resolve such disagreements in a timely manner, our business may be materially adversely -
affected. _

Accou_mtihg“Standards -

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”), which establishes standards of accounting for asset retirement )
obligations.arising from the acquisition, construction, or development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived -
asset. SFAS 143 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002, We
adopted SFAS 143 as of January 1, 2003.

In April 2002, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145 (“SFAS 145”) was issued, which
rescinded SFAS Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, amended No. 13 and contained technical corrections. As a result of
SFAS 145, gains and losses from extinguishments of debt will be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet
the criteria in APB Opinion No. 30, that they are unusual and infrequent and not part of the entity’s recurring
operations. We adopted SFAS 145 as of January 1, 2003.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, which addresses significant issues regarding the recognition,
measurement, and reporting of costs that are associated with exit and disposal activities, including restructuring
activities that are currently accounted for pursuant to guidance that the Emerging Issues Task Force has set forth in
EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS 146 revises the accounting for certain lease
termination costs and employee termination benefits, which are generally recognized in connection with
restructuring charges. The provisions of SFAS 146 are effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after
December 31, 2002, with early adoption encouraged. We have not determined what impact, if any, will occur once
SFAS is adopted on January 1, 2003. -

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretauon No. 45 (“FIN 45”), “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantee, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, which addresses
the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under
guarantees. FIN 45 also requires the recognition of a liability by a guarantor at the inception of certain guarantees
that are entered into or modified after December 31, 2002.
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Factors Affecting Our Operating, Business Prospects And Market Price of Stock
Decreased transaction volume could continue to reduce our revenues.

Our revenues depend on the volume of securities transactions that we handle for our customers.
Transaction volume in the securities industry can fluctuate widely both in markets where prices are rising and also in
markets where prices are falling and in connection with changes in regulatory requirements, industry practices or
other factors. Our securities transaction volume decreased approximately 11.5% during 2002 compared to 2001 on
top of a 16% decline during 2001 compared to 2000. Our order execution transaction volume decreased
approximately 30% between 2001 and 2002 and approximately 20% between 20000 and 2001. Further decreases in
the volume of transactions could result in reduced revenues and adversely affect our profitability.

Our revenues could be reduced significantly due to market price fluctuations.

Our order execution services involve the purchase and sale of securities predominantly as principal, instead
of buying and selling securities as an agent for our customers. As a result, we own securities or are required to buy
securities to complete customer transactions. During the period that we own the securities, market prices could
fluctuate significantly which could result in lost revenues to us and adversely affect our profitability.

A reduction in our commission rates could adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

Intense competition from existing and new brokerage services may harm our business. The market for
online brokerage services is relatively new, rapidly evolving, intensely competitive and has few barriers to entry. We
expect competition to continue and intensify in the future. Discount brokerage firms may continue to reduce their
commission rates in an effort to offer the lowest transaction costs to investors. Because many of our competitors
have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources, offer a wider range of products and
services and have more extensive client bases than we do, they may be able to respond more quickly to new or
changing opportunities, technologies and client requirements than us. They may also be able to undertake more
extensive promotional activities, offer more attractive terms to clients and adopt more aggressive pricing policies
than us. Moreover, current and potential competitors have established or may establish cooperative relationships
among themselves or with third parties or may consolidate to enhance their services and products. Many of these
firms have greater transaction volume and offer a wider range of services than we do, which allows them to
compensate for lower commission rates. Our commission fees for online trading start at $5.00 per trade.

Our independent registered representatives could leave or affiliate with a competitor.

The independent registered representatives can terminate their relationship with us on little or no notice and
could associate with another broker dealer. The independent registered representatives can transfer their client
accounts which could adversely affect our revenues.

Disagreements between our co-chief executive officers could hinder our growth.

Our management team is currently headed by our co-chairmen, co-chief executive officers and co-
presidents, Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble. Our Co-Chairmen of the Board and Co-Chief Executive
Officers may disagree in the future regarding management and administrative decisions. Our bylaws, the Co-
Chairmen’s and Co-Chief Executive Officer’s respective employment agreements and certain resolutions we
adopted provide that our board of directors shall resolve any disagreements that may arise in the future. If the board
of directors does not resolve such disagreements in a timely manner, our business may be materially adversely
affected.

Since Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble own most of our common stock and control us, minority
shareholders will have little say in the direction of the company.

Our co-chairmen, co-chief executive officers and co-presidents, Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble,
beneficially own approximately 80% of our common stock. Accordingly, these two individuals control us and have
the power to, among other matters, to elect all directors, increase our authorized capital stock or cause us to dissolve,
merge or sell our assets. Messrs. Gagne and Goble have also entered into a voting agreement under which they have
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agreed that corporate actions requiring their vote as shareholders will require the approval of both of them, so that
neither of them can act unilaterally, thus strengthening their collective control of us. The voting agreement provides
that, if Messrs. Gagne and Goble are unable to agree as to a particular proposal to be voted upon by our
shareholders, (a) they each agree to vote their shares of our common stock in favor of adjourning the shareholder
meeting to a future date and (b) if they still cannot agree, they each agree to abstain from voting, which may have
the effect of preventing the other shareholders from approving the proposal. Messrs. Gagne and Goble also have
entered into a shareholder agreement pursuant to which each of them has granted to the other a right of first refusal
(except in limited circumstances) to purchase any shares of our common stock owned by them, thus further
strengthening their collective control of us.

Each of Messrs. Gagne and Goble also has entered into an employment agreement with us for an initial
term expiring on December 31, 2005. As a result, they have the right to control our business and operations as our
most senior officers.

A reduction in order flow payménts could negatively impact revenues.

We have arrangements with various investment banking and securities brokerage firms under which we pay
them to send their trade orders to us for execution. This is known as paying for order flow. To attract order flow, we
must be competitive on: ' ‘ ) '

¢ providing enhanced liquidity to our customers;

the speed of our order execution;

s payment for order flow;

the sophistication of our trading technology; and

the quality of our customer service.

Loss of the ability to have orders routed to us in this manner could reduce our transaction volume and therefore
reduce our revenues and adversely affect our profitability.

We are subject to securities regulation and failure to comply could subject us to penalties or sanctions that
could harm our business.

Our business is subject to federal and state laws regulating the securities industry. In addition, the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or the
NASD, and other self:regulatory organizations, as well as the various stock exchanges and state securities
commissions, require strict compliance with their rules and regulations. Broker dealers are subject to regulations
covering all aspects of the securities business, including sales methods, trade practices among broker dealers, use
and safekeeping of clients’ funds and securities, capital structure, record keeping and the conduct of directors,
officers and employees.

Errors in performing clearing functions and failure to comply with related regulatory requirements could
create liabilities to affected customers and lead to civil penalties imposed by the SEC or the NASD. Clearing
services include the confirmation, receipt, settlement and delivery functions involved in securities transactions.
Clearing securities firms are subject to substantially more regulatory contro! and examination than non-clearing
firms because clearing operations involve substantial risks of liability to customers due to clerical errors related to
the handling of customer funds and securities. We are also required to maintain cash or qualified securities in a
special reserve bank account for the exclusive benefit of our customers.

Failure to comply and disputes concerning compliance with any of these laws, rules or regulations could

result in substantial expenses for us as well as censure, fines, the issuance of cease and desist orders or suspension or
expulsion as a broker dealer.
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Potential governmental regulation of the Internet and online commerce could harm our business.

Our business could be harmed by future legislation or regulation, the application of laws and regulations
from jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apply to our business or the application of existing laws and
regulations to the Internet and other online services. The adoption of any additional laws or regulations may
decrease the growth of the Internet or other online services, which could, in turn, decrease the demand for our
trading systems and services and increase our cost of doing business.

Failure to comply with net capital requirements could subject us to suspension or revocation of our broker
dealer registration by the SEC or expulsion by the NASD.

We are subject to stringent rules promulgated by the SEC, the NASD and various other regulatory agencies
with respect to the maintenance of specific levels of net capital by securities brokers. Failure to maintain the
required net capital may subject us to suspension or revocation of registration by the SEC and suspension or
expulsion by the NASD or other regulatory bodies and ultimately could require our liquidation. In addition, a change
in the net capital rules, the imposition of new rules or any unusually large charge against our net capital could limit
our operations that require the intensive use of capital, such as the financing of client account balances.

Failure to qualify as a foreign corporation could result in the imposition of taxes and penalties that would
increase our costs.

Our subsidiaries Advantage Trading Group, Inc. and Empire Financial Group, Inc. are both currently
registered as broker dealers in all 50 states as well as Puerto Rico, but are qualified to do business as a foreign
corporation in only a few states. Because our services are available over the Internet and we have customers in many
states, we and/or any of our subsidiaries may be required to qualify as a foreign corporation. If we fail to qualify as a
foreign corporation in states that may require such qualifications, we may be penalized.

Employee misconduct could result in regulatory sanctions and unanticipated costs.

Because our business involves handling cash and marketable securities on behalf of our customers,
employee misconduct could result in unknown and unmanaged risks or losses. Misconduct by employees could also
include binding us to transactions that exceed authorized limits or present unacceptable risks or hiding from us
unauthorized or unsuccessful activities.

If our retail customers do not repay us for credit we extend to them, our financial condition could be
negatively impacted.

Periods of volatile markets increase the risks inherent in extending credit to the extent that we permit our
retail customers to purchase securities on a margin basis. Under such circumstances the value of the collateral held
by us could fall below the amount borrowed by the customer. We may then be required to sell or buy securities at
prevailing market prices and incur losses to satisfy customer obligations. As of December 31, 2002, we had
extended approximately $5,772,000 in credit to our retail customers, accounting for approximately 42% of our total
assets. We may be required to sell or buy securities at prevailing market prices and incur losses to satisfy customer
obligations which could have a substantial negative impact on our financial condition.

If we are unable to keep up with rapid technological changes in a cost-effective manner, we may lose business.

Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to develop and use new technologies, respond to
technological advances, enhance our existing services and products, and develop new services and products in a
timely and cost-effective manner. The market for brokerage services and, particularly, electronic brokerage services
over the Internet, is characterized by rapid technological change, changing client requirements, frequent service and
product enhancements and introductions, and emerging industry standards. The introduction of services or products
embodying new technologies and the emergence of new industry standards can render existing services or products
obsolete and unmarketable. :
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Interruption or loss of content provided by third parties could cause us to lose customers, harming our
business.

We rely on third-party content providers for much of the financial information we offer through our
website and are therefore dependent on the ability of third-party content providers to deliver content in a timely and
consistent manner. Interruption or termination of our existing third-party content supply would require us to seek
content from other third parties. Delays in obtaining replacement content could cause us to lose customers.

Disruption of our computer systems and/or those of our vendors and systems failures could cause our
revenues to decline and our business reputation to-suffer.

We rely heavily on various electronic media. We receive trade orders using the Internet and telephone. In
addition, we process trade orders through our own systems and those of Bear Stearns Securities Corp., ABN Amro
Incorporated, The Vantra Group, Inc. and Automated Data Processing, Inc. These methods of trading are heavily
dependent on the integrity of the electronic systems supporting them.

Heavy system traffic during peak trading times could cause our systems to operate at unacceptably low
speeds or fail altogether. Any significant degradation or failure of our computer systems, those of our vendors, or
any other systems in the trading process (e.g., online service providers, record keeping and data processing functions
performed by third parties and third-party software such as Internet browsers) could cause clients to suffer delays in
trading. These delays could cause substantial losses for our clients and could subject us to claims from clients for
losses, including litigation claiming fraud or negligence. Our computer systems are also vulnerable to damage or
interruption from human error, natural disasters, power loss, sabotage or computer viruses.

If our systems security is compromised, our reputation may suffer and we may lose business.

Any compromise of our systems’ security could harm our business. The secure transmission of confidential
information over public networks is a critical element of our operations. We and our vendors rely on encryption and
authentication technology to provide the security and authentication necessary to effect secure transmission of
confidential information over the Internet. However, advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field
of cryptography or other events or developments may result in a compromise of our systems’ security.

Claims of infringement may increase our costs and disrupt our business.

Other parties may claim that we infringe on their intellectual property rights. Regardless of whether any
such claims are valid, claims of infringement could be time-consuming and expensive to defend, could divert our
resources and our management’s attention. If we are forced to stop using any software, systems or processes that are
important to run our operations, our business may be dlsrupted and our costs significantly increased.

If we are unable to obtain addmonal capital when we need it, we may not be able to effectively compete in the
marketplace.

We anticipate that our available cash resources, combined with the net proceeds from the offering, will be
sufficient to meet our presently anticipated working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least the next
12 months. In the future, however, we may need to raise additional funds in order to support further expansion,
develop new or enhanced services and products, respond to competitive pressures, acquire complementary
businesses or technologies or respond to unanticipated requirements. We cannot assure you that additional financing
will be available when needed on terms favorable to us or on terms that will not result in dilution to our existing
shareholders. Our lines of credit are subject to annual renewal in May of each year. As of December 31, 2002 we
had no outstanding balance under these lines of credit. We cannot assure you that our lines of credit will be renewed
and if it not renewed it may affect our ability to operate.

We rely on relatively few key personnel to provide critical management functions.

If one or more of such individuals leave the Company, our ability to manage our operations may be
impeded and our business could be adversely impacted.
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We may be delisted from the American Stock Exchange which would reduce our stockholder liquidity.

On February 7, 2003, Gregory M. Misiak and James J. Schweiger, two of our independent directors who
were on our audit committee, resigned from our board of directors. The rules of the American Stock Exchange
require that each issuer listed on the AMEX have an audit committee comprised of at least three independent
directors. As a result of their resignations, our board of directors and audit committee have only one independent
director. We are requesting that the AMEX temporarily waive its independent director requirement while we search
for two independent directors to fill these seats. If AMEX does not grant our request and allow us the opportunity to
elect two new independent directors or if we cannot fill the two vacated seats in a timely manner, the AMEX may
delist our securities. If our common stock is not listed on AMEX it may be more difficult for our stockholders to
trade our stock.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may result from the potential change in the value of a financial
instrument as a result of fluctuations in interest rates and market prices. We have established policies, procedures
and internal processes governing our management of market risks in the normal course of our business operations.

Advantage Trading Group, Inc, which provides our clearing operations, seeks to control the risks associated
with its customer activities by requiring customers to maintain margin collateral in compliance with various
regulatory and internal guidelines. Advantage monitors required margin levels daily and, pursuant to such
guidelines, requires the customers to deposit additional collateral, or to reduce positions, when necessary.

As a fundamental part of our brokerage business, we hold short-term interest earning assets, mainly funds
required to be segregated in compliance with federal regulations for customers. We had no requirement for such
funds at December 31, 2002. We invest such funds primarily in short-term fixed-rate U.S. Treasury Bills and
repurchase agreements. Our interest earning assets are financed by short-term interest bearing liabilities totaling
$5,911,966 at December 31, 2002 and $8,990,457 at December 31, 2001 in the form of customer cash balances. We
earn a net interest spread on the difference between amounts earned on customer margin loans and amounts paid on
customer credit balances. Since we establish the rate paid on customer cash balances, a substantial portion of our
interest rate risk is under our direct management. We generally move rates earned on loans in lockstep with rates
paid on credit balances to maintain a consistent net interest spread, and, therefore, do not anticipate that changes in
interest rates will have a material effect on our earnings and cash flows.

Our revenues and financial instruments are denominated in U.S. dollars, and we have not invested in
derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity instruments

Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Data

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Empire Financial Holding Company the accompanying notes
thereto and the independent accountants’ reports are mcluded as part of this Form 10-K and immediately follow the
signature page of this Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes In And Disagreements With Accountants On Accounting And Financial Disclosure.

None.
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PART I

Item 10. Directors And Executive Officers Of The Registrant

The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions held with respect to each director and
executive officer:

Name Age Position
Richard L. Goble .........cceorevenee. 42 Co-Chief Executive Officer, Co-President and
Co-Chairman of the Board
Kevin M. Gagne........ccoeveenencnene 43 Co-Chief Executive Officer, Co-President and
Co-Chairman of the Board
George R. Cupples.....coovineinnn 52 Chief Financial Officer/Compliance
John J. Tsucalas............cccevvvennn. 63 Director

Richard L. Goble is our co-chairman of the board, co-chief executive officer and co-president. He is also
the president of Advantage Trading Group, Inc. Mr. Goble is responsible for the creation, development and
management of our execution and clearing operations.

Kevin M. Gagne is our co-chairman of the board, co-chief executive officer and co-president. He is also the
president of Empire Financial Group, Inc., which he co-founded in 1990. Mr. Gagne was responsible for the
creation of Empire's online trading operations and development of our institutional operations.

George R. Cupples is our chief financial officer and has been our compliance officer and controller since
August 1999. Mr. Cupples also became our secretary on March 20, 2003. From 1990 to 1999, Mr. Cupples worked
for the SEC as an examiner of broker dealers for compliance with various federal and NASD rules and regulations.
His activities also included reviewing litigation involving broker dealers in enforcement proceedings. From 1982 to
1990, he worked for the NASD examining broker dealers for compliance with net capital requirements, customer
protection, sales practices and supervisory procedures

John J. Tsucalas became a director upon completion of our IPO in April 2002. Since February 2000, Mr.
Tsucalas has been chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Littlefield Adams & Company, a company
engaged in the sale of men's apparel. He held these positions on an interim basis from July 1999 to February 2000.
Since 1979 Mr. Tsucalas operated his own corporate financial services company, John James Tsucalas & Co. He is
a chartered financial analyst.

Director Compensation

We pay non-employee directors an annual retainer of $5,000, in addition to $500 per meeting, plus travel
reimbursements. In addition, each non-employee director received stock options covering 20,000 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price equal to the initial offering price of $6.00 per share under our 2000 Incentive
Compensation Plan. =

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors, executive officers and persons
who own more than ten percent of their outstanding common stock, to file with the Securities and Exchange -
Commission, or SEC, initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common stock. Such
persons are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all such reports they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports furnished to us and written

representations that no other reports are required, Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our officers,
directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners have been filed timely.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The following table summarizes all compensation paid during the last three fiscal years to our co-chief
executive officers and each other executive officer whose annual compensation exceeded $100,000 during the three

years ending December 31, 2002.

Summary Compensation Table

Annual

Compensation Other Annual

Name and Principal Position Fiscal Year Salary Bonus Compensation
Richard L. Goble 2002 $358,900 - $432,971
Co-Chief Executive Officer and 2001 ‘ 108,000 $200,000 600,000
Co-Chairman of the Board 2000 302,160 -- 700,000
Kevin M. Gagne 2002 358,900 - 432971
Co-Chief Executive Officer and 2001 108,000 200,000 600,000
Co-Chairman of the Board 2000 302,160 - 700,000
George R. Cupples 2002 126,300 -- --
Chief Finance/Compliance Officer 2001 127,700 -- --
2000 120,200 -- .-
Donald A. Wojnowski Jr. 2002 103,579 - 471,438
Vice President, Business Development 2001 132,024 -- 106,472
2000 60,000 -- 131,751

“Bonus” for Messrs. Gagne and Goble consists of a $200,000 bonus earned by each individual for fiscal
year 2001, half of which was paid during 2001 and the other half of which was paid during 2002.

"Other Annual Compensation” for Messrs. Goble and Gagne consists of distributions to these individuals as
shareholders related to their tax liability for our taxable income for the prior calendar year and for Mr. Wojnowski

consists of brokerage commissions.

Employment Agreements.

We have employment agreements with each of Messrs. Gagne and Goble which provide that each of them
shall serve as our co-chairman of the board, co-chief executive officer and co-president. Each of these agreements
provides for annual base compensation of $375,000. In addition, each of these agreements provides incentive and
other compensation and benefits to the executive. These employment agreements have an initial term expiring on
December 31, 2005. Beginning on January 1, 2003, and each following January 1, the term of each agreement will
be automatically extended for one additional year unless we give written notice of termination to the employee not
later than at least 180 days prior to that date. As a result, if we elect to terminate either of these agreements we will
be obligated to employ the employee for at least two and a half years after making this election to terminate. These
agreements may also be terminated by us after a conviction of (and such conviction is sustained on all appeals) or
the entry of a plea of guilty by the employee to a felony, if the employee materially breaches the agreement which is
not cured within ten days, if the employee commits any act or omission constituting willful misconduct, gross
negligence, fraud, misappropriation, embezzlement or competitive business activities which we believe could cause
us material harm or upon the employee's disability as defined in the employment agreement. Each of these
employment agreements contains confidentiality provisions and also non-competition provisions during the term of
the agreement and for two years thereafter, which prohibits him from engaging in the securities brokerage business

in the State of Florida or using the Internet.
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Messrs. Gagne and Goble each may terminate his agreement at any time upon 90 days prior written notice.
If either Mr. Gagne or Mr. Goble terminates his agreement because he is assigned duties that are materially
inconsistent with his current position, because of our material breach of his agreement or as a result of a change in
control or if we terminate the agreement without cause, then we must compensate him for the remainder of the term.
In the event we terminate the agreement because of the employee's disability, we must pay that employee his base
salary until the earlier of nine months after his termination or the date on which his long-term disability insurance
payments begin.

We have also entered into an employment agreement with Donald Wojnowski Jr., which provides that he
shall serve as Vice President, Business Development. His agreement provides for annual base compensation of
$150,000 and also provides incentive and other compensation and benefits to him. He also will be granted stock
options under the 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan upon completion of this offering covering 200,000 shares of
our common stock at an exercise price equal to the initial public offering price.

This employment agreement has an initial term expiring on December 31, 2004, and automatically extends
until either party provides 90 days prior written notice of termination. We may terminate the employment agreement
for cause, which means a material breach of the employment agreement that is not cured within 10 days of receipt of
notice from us, indictment for a criminal felony or a material breach of Mr. Wojnowski's representation that his
performance under the employment agreement does not violate any other agreement under which he is bound. We
also can terminate the employment agreement upon his disability as defined in the employment agreement. Either
party may terminate the employment agreement upon 90 days prior written notice. In the event we terminate his
employment without cause, we will pay Mr. Wojnowski his base salary for the then remaining term of the
agreement.

If Mr. Wojnowski terminates the agreement for good reason, which means a termination resulting from our
material breach or otherwise occurring within three months of a change in control as defined in the employment
agreement, we will pay him his base salary for the remaining term of the agreement. This employment agreement
contains confidentiality provisions and also non-competition provisions during the term of the agreement and for
three years thereafter, which prohibits him from.engaging in the securities brokerage business in the State of Florida
or using the Internet. In December 2002, Mr. Wojnowski resigned as an executive officer. He remains one of our
employees.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. Under
these agreements, we have agreed to indemnify them against certain liabilities and expenses in proceedings other
than those we bring against them that they become involved in because of their status as a director, officer or agent
of ours. In order to be entitled to indemnification, they must have acted in good faith and in a manner they
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to our best interests and, with respect to any criminal proceedings, had
no reasonable cause to believe their conduct was unlawful. With respect to any action brought by us or in our right, a
director or executive officer will also be indemnified, to the extent not prohibited by law, for liabilities and expenses
they reasonably incur if a court determines they acted in good faith and in a2 manner they reasonably believed to be
in or not opposed to our best interests. Under the terms of the agreement, no legal action can be brought by us or on
our behalf against a former officer or director more than two years after the officer or director has ceased serving us
in that capacity, if the action would give rise to a claim for indemnification. '

Option Grants in Fiscal 2002

The following table sets forth each grant of stock options during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002
to each of the named executive-officers. No stock appreciation rights were granted to these individuals during that
year. A :
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Individual Grants Potential Realizable Value
at Assumed Annual Rates
of Stock Price Appreciation

Number of % of Total

I?lf(ci::ll;li:lsg G?zﬁlt::gsto Exercise or for Option Term (1)
Options Employees in Base Price Expiration
Name Granted Fiscal Year (per share) Date 5% 10%
Richard L. Goble........oonuneee. - -- - - — —
Kevin M. Gagne ........coccvunnn. - -- -- - — —
George R. Cupples ..o 50,000 8.7% $6.00 5/30/2012 $188,688 $478,123
Donald A. Wojnowski Jr......... 200,000 34.8% $6.00 5/30/2012 754,674 1,912,491

(1) Potential realizable value is based on the assumption that the common stock price appreciates at the annual rate shown,
compounded annually, from the date of grant until the end of the option term. The amounts have been calculated based on
the requirements promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The actual value, if any, a named executive
officer may realize will depend on the excess of the stock price over the exercise price on the date the option is exercised, if
the executive were to sell the shares on the date of exercise. Therefore, the value realized may not be equal to or near the
potential realizable value as calculated in this table.

Aggregated Option Exercises in 2002 and Fiscal Year-End Option Value Table

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the exercise of stock options by the named
executive officers during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 and unexercised stock options held by the named
executive officers as of December 31, 2002. There were no exercises of options during 2002,

Number of Securities Underlying

Unexercised Options Held as of Value of Unexercised In-the-Money Options
December 31, 2002 as of December 31, 2002 (1)
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Richard L. Goble........cccccoovnineenn. - - -
Kevin M. Gagne......c.ccooeeevncnnee. - - -- -
George R. Cupples......cccoreuenenn. - 50,000 - -
Donald A. Wojnowski Jr............. _ 100,000 100,000 - -

(1) Value of unexercised in-the-money options is the sum of the value of each option granted, calculated on a grant by grant basis. The value of
each option is equal to of the product of the number of shares that could be acquired upon the exercise of unexercised options as of the end
of 2002 multiplied by the difference between the exercise price for the grant and the year-end market price, of $0.92 per share, excluding
grants for which the difference is equal to or less than zero. All grants had an exercise price greater than the year-end market price.

2000 Incentive Compensation Plan

We adopted the 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan, which is designed to serve as an incentive for retaining
qualified and competent directors, employees, consultants and advisors. Stock options, stock appreciation rights and
restricted stock options will be granted to certain persons in proportion to their contributions to our overall success
as determined by the board of directors, or committee thereof, in their sole discretion.

Our board of directors, or a committee thereof, administers and interprets the 2000 Plan and is authorized to
grant options to all eligible employees, directors and executive officers (whether current or former employees), as
well as consultants and independent contractors. The 2000 Plan provides for the granting of both "incentive stock
options" (as defined in Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) and non-statutory stock
options. Incentive stock options may only be granted, however, to employees. Options can be granted under the
2000 Plan on the terms and at the prices determined by the board of directors, or a committee thereof, except that the
per share exercise price of incentive stock options granted under the 2000 Plan will not be less than the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of grant and, in the case of an incentive stock option granted to a 10%
shareholder, the per share exercise price will not be less than 110% of the fair market value as defined in the 2000
Plan.
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Options under the 2000 Plan that would otherwise qualify as incentive stock options will not be treated as
incentive stock options to the extent that the aggregate fair market value of the shares covered by the incentive stock
options which are exercisable for the first time by any individual during any calendar year exceeds $100,000.

Options and stock appreciation rights granted under the 2000 Plan would not be exercisable after the period
or periods specified in the option agreement. Options and stock appreciation rights granted under the 2000 Plan are
exercisable no later than ten years from the date of the grant. Incentive stock options are not transferable. The
optionee may transfer non-statutory stock options and stock appreciation rights by will or the laws of descent and
distribution. Adjustments in the number of shares subject to options and stock appreciation rights granted under the
2000 Plan can be made by the board of directors or the appropriate committee in the event of a stock dividend or re-
capitalization resulting in a stock split-up, combination or exchange of shares. The maximum number of shares
which may be granted as restricted stock or underlying stock options or SARs is 1,000,000.

For each grant of restricted stock under the 2000 Plan, there shall be established a restricted period, which
shall be no less than six months and no greater than five years and which may vary among the recipients of the
restricted stock. Shares of restricted stock cannot be sold or otherwise transferred during the restricted period, but
otherwise the holder of restricted stock shall have the same rights as all of our other shareholders. In the event that a
holder of restricted stock leaves our employment during the restricted period (other than as a result of death or
disability), then all shares of restricted stock that are still subject to the restrictions shall be forfeited and returned to
us. If a holder is terminated as an employee by us without cause or by mutual agreement between the holder and us,
then the administrator of the 2000 Plan, in its discretion, may release some or all of the shares from the restrictions,

Item 12. Security Ownership Of Certain Beneficial Owners And Management

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2002 with respect to compensation plans
(including individual compensation arrangements) under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
’ Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise of

outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of

equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected in

warrants and rights " .outstanding options, column (a)
Plan Category (in thousands) warrants and rights (in thousands)
(@) () (0)
Equity compensation plans approved 648 100 . $6.00 . 351.900
by security holders....cooooerinveccccnninns ’ ) ’
Equity compensation plans not _ — —
approved by security holders(1).............. :
648,100 $6.00 351,900
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Security Ownership Of Certain Beneficial
Owners And Management

The following table sets forth as of Apri!l 10, 2003 the information regarding beneficial ownership of our
common stock, by (1) each person who owns beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding common stock, (2) each
of our directors, (3) each of our executive officers and (4) all directors and executive officers as a group.

Number of Shares
Owned Subject to  Total Number of

Exercise of Shares

Number of Shares Options or Beneficially Percentage of

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned Warrants Owned Outstanding
Richard L. Goble(1)....cccoveeeivrienicerninnnns 2,093,100 — 2,093,100 43.7%
Kevin M. Gagne (2)......ccoovceeemevecrneereenen. 2,018,100 — 2,018,100 422
George R. Cupples......ccoovreveeenrierinenns 100 10,000 10,100 *
JohnJ. Tsucalas.........cccoceovevvvevrveeeeec e, 1,500 20,000 21,500 *
Donald A. Wojnowski Jr. .......ccccceveie. 13,500 120,000 133,500 2.7

All directors and executive officers as

a group (7 persons)......ccouevevrenne everaes 4,121,200 150,000 4,271,200 86.5

* less than 1%

(1) Held by Richard L. Goble as trustee of the Goble Family Trust except for 5,100 shares held by G&G Holdings, Inc.
(2) Held by Kevin M. Gagne as trustee of the Gagne First Revocable Trust except for 5,100 shares held by G&G Holdings, Inc.

The business address of all directors and executive officers is c/o Empire Financial Holding Company,
1385 West State Road 434, Longwood, Florida 32750.

Item 13. Certain Relationships And Related Transactions

We lease the facilities where our principal offices are located from G&G Holdings, Inc., a corporation
owned by our principal shareholders, co-chairmen of the board and co-chief executive officers, Messrs. Gagne and
Goble. The lease expires on May 31, 2009 and provides for average rent of approximately $23,000 per month, plus
sales and property taxes.

Prior to our IPO, we acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of each of Advantage Trading Group, Inc.,
Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Empire Investment Advisors, Inc. from Messrs. Gagne and Goble in exchange for
a total of 4,000,000 shares of our common stock, issued in equal amounts to Messrs. Gagne and Goble.

From time to time we paid dividends to our existing shareholders, Messrs. Gagne and Goble, during 2000,
2001 and 2002 in the amounts of $2,646,986, $1,942,150 and $865,941, respectively. Prior to our IPO in April
2002, we were an S corporation for federal and state tax purposes, and our taxable income is a direct liability of our
shareholders. As payment to Messrs. Gagne and Goble, to assist them in the payment of their estimated income tax
liability related to our 2001 taxable incomie prior to the offering, we made a distribution to them in April and
October 2002 of a total of $732,294 which equals approximately 39.1% of our taxable income from January 1, 2001
through December 31, 2001. We made a partial distribution of $133,647 in October 2002 and plan to make an
additional distribution of approximately $60,000 to Messrs. Gagne and Goble related to their income taxes arising
from our taxable income from January 1, 2002 until completion of the IPO.

On March 28, 2003, we entered into a non-binding letter of intent with our principal shareholders, Kevin
M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble, dated March 28, 2003, confirming our interest in effectuating a spin-off of one of
our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Advantage Trading Group, Inc. The consummation of the spin-off is subject to the
execution of a definitive agreement between us and our principal shareholders that would provide for, among other
things, (a) that we would distribute to all holders of our common stock, all shares of the common stock of
Advantage Trading Group, Inc. (b) that we and the principal shareholders shall take all reasonable or necessary
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measures to effectuate the spin-off, (c) that each of the principal shareholders will vote in favor of this distribution,
if the Securities and Exchange Commission, the American Stock Exchange or the State of Florida requires approval
of the spin-off by our shareholders and (d) that the spm -off and other related transactions will be tax free to us and
our shareholders. . .

The definitive agreement would also provide that subsequent to the consummation of the spin-off, Mr,
Goble and Mr. Gagne would exchange their shares of our common stock and Advantage common stock, so that Mr.
Goble will receive shares of Advantage common stock and Mr. Gagne will receive shares of our common stock.
Following the share exchange, Mr. Goble would own approximately 80% of the Advantage common stock and Mr.
Gagne would own approximately 80% of our common stock.

There is no assurance that the definitive agreement will be executed or the distribution of Advantage
common stock described above will be consummated.

Item 14. -Controls And Procedures

Within the 90 days prior to the date of this Annual Report, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal controls and procedures for financial reporting.
This evaluation was done under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our CEOs and
CFO.

Disclosure controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as this annual report, is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Disclosure controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that the information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEOs and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Internal controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of
providing reasonable assurance that (1) our transactions are properly authorized; (2) our assets are safeguarded
against unauthorized or improper use; and (3) our transactions are properly recorded and reported, all to permit the
preparation of our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our management, including the CEOs and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal
controls will prevent all error and fraud. A control system, no matter how well operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered
relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. The design of
any system of controls also is based in part upon assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be
no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over
time, control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. .

The CEQ/CFO evaluation of our disclosure controls and internal controls included a review of the controls’
objectives and design, the controls’ implementation and the effect of the controls on the information generated for
use in this annual report. In the course of our evaluation, we sought to identify data errors, controls problems or acts
of fraud and to confirm that appropriate corrective action, including process improvements, were being undertaken.
This type of evaluation will be done on a quarterly basis so that the conclusions concerning controls effectiveness
can be reported in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and annual reports on Form 10-K. Our internal controls are
also evaluated by our independent auditors in connection with their audit and review activities. The overall goals of
these evaluation activities are to monitor our disclosure controls and our internal controls and to make modifications
as necessary our intent in this regard is that the disclosure controls and the internal controls will be maintained as
dynamic systems that change (including with improvements and corrections) as conditions warrant.

Among other matters, we sought in our evaluation to determine whether there were any “significant
deficiencies” or “material weaknesses” in our internal controls. In the professional auditing literature, “significant
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deficiencies” are referred to as “reportable conditions™; these are control issues that could have a significant adverse
effect on the ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data in the financial statements. A *“material
weakness” is defined in the auditing literature as a particularly serious reportable condition where the internal
control does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud may occur in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

In accord with SEC requirements, the CEOs and CFO note that, since the date of the evaluation to the date
of this annual report, there have been no significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses. However, management believes that we are still adapting to being a public company and that
our internal controls may be improved. Management is reviewing possible improvement.

Based upon our evaluation, our CEOs and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls are generally
effective to ensure that material information relating to Empire Financial Holding Company and its subsidiaries is
made known to management, including the CEOs and CFO, particularly during the period when our periodic reports
are being prepared, and that our internal controls are generally effective to provide reasonable assurance that our
financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Management
is reviewing ways to improve both our disclosure controls and our internal controls.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits And Reports On Form 8-K

(a)  Exhibits

221 Share Exchange Agreement among the Registrant, Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble (1)

2.2 Amended and Restated Share Exchange Agreement among the Registrant, Kevin M. Gagne
and Richard L. Goble (1)

3.1 Registrant’s Articles of Incorporation(1)

32 Registrant’s Bylaws(1)

33 Amendment to Sections 3.9 and 4.16 of Registrant’s Bylaws

4.1 Form of Underwriter’s Warrant Agreement, including Form of Warrant Certificate(1)

42 Form of Registrant’s Common Stock Certificate(1)

9.1 Voting Agreement between Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble(1)

10.1 2000 Stock Option Plan(1)

10.2 Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Kevin M. Gagne(1)

10.3 Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Richard L. Goble(1)

10.4 Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Donald A. Wojnowski Jr.(1)

10.5 Lease between Advantage Trading Group, Inc. and G&G Holdings, Inc. relating to principal
offices of Registrant located at 1385 W. Highway 434, Longwood, Florida(1)

10.6 Lease between Empire Financial Group, Inc. and G&G Holdings, Inc. relating to principal
offices of Registrant located at 1385 W. Highway 434, Longwood, Florida(1)

10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors and
executive officers(1)

10.8 (éleari(ng Agreement between Empire Financial Group, Inc. and Bear Stearns Securities

orp.(1)
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10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

21.1
99.1

99.2

99.3

Firm Inventory Credit Agreement between Advantage Trading Group, Inc. and Mercantile
Bank National Association (now named Firstar Corporation), as amended(1)

Remote Processing Agreement between SunGard Financial Systems, Inc. and Advantage
Trading Group, Inc.(1)

Shareholders Agreement by and among the Registrant, Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L.
Goble(1)

Letter Agreement dated August 23, 2000, between the Registrant and Donald A. Wojnowski
Jr.(l)

Brokerage Credit Agreement between Advantage Trading Group, Inc. and Firstar Bank,
N.A.(1)

Letter of Intent, dated March 28, 2003, by and between Empire Financial Holding Company,
Kevin M. Gagne and Richard L. Goble(2)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant |

Co-Principal Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Co-Principal Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Principal Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number filed as part of Empire Financial Holding Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-86365.

(2) Incorporates by reference to the same exhibit number filed as an exhibit to Empire Financial Holding Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated March 28, 2003.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

The Company filed the following reports on Form 8-K during the year ended December 31, 2002:

A report on Form 8-K was filed on October 29, 2002 reporting on Item 5, Other Events.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

EMPIRE FINANCIJAL HOLDING COMPANY

By: /s/ Richard L. Goble
Richard L. Goble, Co-Chief Executive Officer

By: /fs/ Kevin M. Gagne
Kevin M. Gagne, Co-Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ George R. Cupples
George R. Cupples, Chief Financial Officer-
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Dated April 16, 2003

' In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES TITLE DATE

/s/ Richard L. Goble Co- Chief Executive Officer and Director April 16, 2003
Richard L. Goble (Co-Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Kevin M. Gagne Co- Chief Executive Officer and Director April 16, 2003
Kevin M. Gagne (Co-Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ George R. Cupples Chief Financial Officer April 16, 2003
George R. Cupples (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John J. Tsucalas Director April 16, 2003

John J. Tsucalas
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CERTIFICATION

L, Richard L. Goble, Co-Chief Executive Officer of Empire Financial Holding Company, certify that:
l. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Empire Financial Holding Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we

have:

a) - Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclbsed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: April 16, 2003
/s/ Richard L. Goble

Richard L. Goble
Co-Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION

I, Kevin M. Gagne, Co-Chief Executive Officer of Empire Financial Holding Company, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Empire Financial Holding Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a
date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

4 6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: April 16, 2003
/s/ Keith M. Gagne

Kevin M. Gagne
Co-Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION

[, George R. Cupples, Chief Financial Officer of Empire Financial Holding Company, certify that:
I. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Empire Financial Holding Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within
90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s
auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date
of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: April 16, 2003
s/ George R. Cupples

George R. Cupples
Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Empire Financial Holding Company and subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Empire Financial Holding
Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations
and shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Empire Financial Holding Company and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
schedule listed in the Table of Contents to the Consolidated Financial Statements is presented for purposes of
complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and is not part of the basic financial statements.
This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements
and in our opinion, fairly states in all material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Sweeney, Gates & Co.

Ft. Lauderdale, Florida
March 25, 2003 except for Note 3
which is as of March 28, 2003




ASSETS

EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables from customers
Receivables from brokers and dealers and clearing

organizations

Deposits at clearing organizations

Income taxes receivable

Property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation of $163,962 and $90,752, respectively

Customer lists, net

Other assets

Total assets

Continued

2002 2001
$ 4,146,857 $ 2,327,029
5,772,216 8,774,765
1,723,621 3,776,626
631,687 535,237
351,000 ;
109,879 111,466
331,390 1,811,777
427,983 238,516
$ 13,494,633 $ 17,575,416

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings from bank

Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities

Payable to customers

Payable to brokers and dealers and clearing
Organizations

Due to S corporation stockholders

Contract payable

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares
authorized; none issued and outstanding

Common stock, $.01 par value, 100,000,000
shares authorized; 5,000,000 issued and outstanding in 2002
and 4,000,000 shares issued and outstanding in 2001

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost, 212,200 shares at December 31, 2002

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

2002 2001
$ - $ 1,032,000
3,413,044 2,731,576
5,661,667 8,990,457
472,436 116,152
61,353 -
; 1,735,155
9,608,500 14,605,340
50,000 40,000
8,350,095 500,691
(3,378,765) 2,429,385
(1,135,197) :
3,886,133 2,970,076
$ 13,494,633 $ 17,575,416

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2002 001 2000

Revenues:
Order execution trading revenues, net $ 4,886,933 $ 7,724,244 $ 14,117,905
Commissions and fees 13,001,503 10,428,857 10,939,186
Order flow 37,968 52,005 456,184
Interest 349,732 741,812 2,694,630
Other 204,572 563,341 234,784
\
18,480,708 19,510,259 28,442,689
Expenses:
Employee compensation and benefits 7,934,805 7,545,078 11,541,916
Commissions and clearing costs 6,672,360 4,210,434 3,821,323
Customer lists, order flow payments 1,001,593 2,183,296 3,391,663
Interest 76,881 582,301 1,130,222
Communications and data processing 762,036 527,474 1,242,610
General and administrative 3,426,608 2,629,370 4,183,744
Advertising 82,019 297,025 533,634
Impairment loss 1,001,474 - -
20,957,776 17,974,978 25,845,112
Net income (loss) $ (2,477,068) $ 1,535281 $ 2,597,577
Eamings (loss) per share — ,
basic and diluted ‘ (80.54) $0.38 $0.65
Unaudited pro forma information (Note 4):
Income (loss) before income taxes (2,477,068) 1,535,281 2,597,577

Provisions for income taxes - 577,700 977,500

Net income (loss) $ (2,477,068) $ 957,581 $ 1,620,077

Pro forma earnings (loss) per share — )
basis and diluted . ($0.54) $0.24 $0.41

Weighted average shares outstanding 4,587,494 4,000,000 4,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2002 2001 200

Operating activities:

Continued

Net income (loss) $(2,477,068) $1,535281  $2,597,577
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 73,210 88,044 124,800
Amortization of customer lists 690,403 266,438 —
Impairments 1,001,474 —_ —
Non-cash charge for options issued for services 413,000 —_— —
Loss on disposal of furniture and equipment — 45,846 93,634
Non-cash contributions of rental expense — — 276,312
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivable from customers 3,002,549 3,213,816 3,596,421
Receivable from brokers and dealers and
clearing organizations 2,053,005 (1,463,127) (95,351)
Deposits at clearing organizations (96,450) 171,908 4,154
Income taxes receivable (351,000) — —
Other assets (189,465) (104,087) 177,980
Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities 681,468 (171,011) 1,010,049
Payable to customers (3,328,792) 206,492 (1,985,349)
Payable to brokers and dealers
and clearing organizations 356,284 (427,208) 199,227
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,828,618 3,362,392 5,999,454
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (71,623) (33,045) (190,917)
Purchase of assets {211,490) (343,060) —
Net cash used in investing activities $ (283,113) $ (376,105) § (190917

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Financing activities:
Issuance of common stock
Payments of contracts payable
Purchase of treasury stock
Payment of short-term borrowings from bank
Stockholder distributions

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

Income taxes

2002 2001 2000
$5,042,616  $ — 3 —
(1,735,155) — —
(1,135,197) — —
(1,032,000)  (1,913,000)  (3,038,000)
(865941)  (1,942,150)  (2,646,986)
274,323 (3,855,150)  (5,684,986)
1,819,828 (868,863) 123,551
2,327,029 3,195,892 3,072,341
$ 4,146,857 $2327,029  $ 3,195,892
$ 76881 $ 526347  $ 1,130,222
$ 351,000 $ — 3 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

Organization and operations - Empire Financial Holding Company (the “Company™), a Florida corporation, was
formed on February 16, 2000 to acquire Empire Financial Group, Inc. (“Empire Group”), Advantage Trading
Group, Inc. (“Advantage”) and Empire Investment Advisors, Inc. (“Advisors”). All subsidiaries are wholly owned
and all intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

Empire Group, incorporated in Florida on August 20, 1990, is a securities broker dealer, which provides discount
brokerage services to retail and institutional customers. Advantage, incorporated in Florida on July 18, 1995, isa
securities broker dealer, which acts as principal in providing order execution services for independent broker dealers
and also acts as a clearing broker for its affiliate, Empire Group and other broker dealers. Advisors, incorporated in
Florida on September 10, 1999, is a fee-based investment advisory service, which offers its services to retail
customers. The Company's executive office is located in Longwood, Florida. The Company operates in two
primary business segments, retail brokerage services (Empire Group and Advisors) and order execution services
(Advantage).

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Receivables from and payable to customers — Accounts receivable from and payable to customers include amounts
due on cash and margin transactions. Securities owned by customers are held as collateral for receivables.

Securities owned and securities sold, not yet purchased - Securities owned, which are readily marketable, and
securities sold, not yet purchased (short sales), are recorded at market value with unrealized gains or losses reflected
in income. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had securities owned of approximately $22,000 and
$4,172 respectively. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company did not have any securities sold, not yet
purchased.

Property and equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Leasehold improvements are capitalized,
while repair and maintenance costs are charged to operations as incutred. When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost
and accumulated depreciation thereon are removed from the accounts, and any gains or losses are included in operations.
Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the lease term. Depreciation and
amortization on furniture and equipment are provided utilizing the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets, which range from five to seven years. The Company recorded losses on the disposal of
property and equipment of $0, $45,846, and $93,634 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively, which have been recorded in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of
operations.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of long-lived assets - The Company evaluates the recoverability of its property and equipment and
other assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Board No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”). SFAS 144 requires recognition of impairment of
long-lived assets in the event the net book value of such assets exceeds the estimated future undiscounted cash flows
attributable to such assets or the business to which such assets relate. SFAS 144 excludes goodwill and intangible
assets. When an asset exceeds its expected cash flows, it is considered to be impaired and is written down to fair
value, which is determined based on either discounted future cash flows or appraised values. The provisions of
SFAS 144 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The
Company adopted the statement for the year ending December 31, 2002, No impairments were recognized during
the year ended December 31, 2002.

Customer lists - Purchased customer lists are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the customers. A

significant portion of the customer lists is amortized over thirty-nine (39) months. Periodically, management tests
the customer lists to determine the viability. If sufficient revenues are not produced, an impairment is recognized.
Additionally, the Company must continue to periodically review intangible assets. See Footnote 5 for discussion.

Securities transactions - Securities transactions and the related revenues and expenses are recorded
on the trade date.

Order execution trading revenues, net - Order execution trading revenues, net, are generated from the difference
between the price paid to buy securities and the amount received from the sale of securities. Volatility of stock
prices, which can result in significant price fluctuations in short periods of time, may result in trading gains or
losses. The Company typically acts as principal in these transactions and does

not receive a fee or commission for providing order execution services.

Commissions and fees - Commissions and fees include revenues generated from transactional fees

charged to retail and institutional customers. Commissions and fees also include mutual fund transaction sales
commissions and trailer fees, which are periodic fees paid by mutual funds as an incentive to keep assets invested
with them over time.

Order flow rebates - Empire and other brokerages utilize the Company as a clearing agent. The Company executes
the trades and then rebates back to the brokerage firm for whom they are clearing an agreed upon amount for each
trade in exchange for the flow of orders.

Deferred revenue — The Company defers commission revenue on annuity contracts when the issuer has a right to
charge back commissions should the annuity owner surrender the contract. Commission revenue is recorded when
charge back provisions expire.

Advertising - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income taxes — The Company, Empire Group, Advantage and Advisors, each, with the consent of their
shareholders, elected to be “S™ Corporations under the Internal Revenue Code until April 9, 2002, at which time the
Company completed its public offering and terminated its’ S corporation election. Until that date, all taxable
income or loss flowed through to the stockholders. Accordingly, no income tax expense or liability is recorded in
the accompanying financial statements to April 9, 2002. The pro forma adjustments shown in the consolidated
statements of operations reflect provisions for income taxes computed based upon statutory tax rates as if the
Company had been subject to federal and state taxation during 2001 and 2000.

After April 9, 2002, the Company accounts for income taxes according to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, which requires an asset and liability approach to financial
accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed annually for
differences between the financial and tax basis of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible
amounts in the future, based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are
expected to affect taxable income. A valuation allowance is recognized if, based on the weight of available
evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred asset will not be realized. Income tax
expense is the tax payable or refundable for the period, plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. :

Management estimates and assumptions - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments - The financial instruments of the Company are reported in the accompanying
consolidated statement of financial condition at their carrying values, which approximate their fair values due to
their short-term nature.

Earnings per share — Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income (loss) available to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per
share considers the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were
exercised or resulted in the issuance of common stock. Options totaling 648,100 shares for the year ended December
31, 2002, were not included in the computation of net loss per share because the effect of inclusion would be anti-
dilutive.

Segment reporting — The Company repotts its segment information according to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards Board No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information™ (“SFAS 1317).
The segments are reported based on management’s approach for making operating decisions and addressing
performance.

Reclassifications — Certain amounts in 2001 have been reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation.




EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Recent accounting pronouncements —

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “ Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS No. 143”) which establishes standards of accounting for asset retirement
obligations arising from the acquisition, construction, or development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived
asset. SFAS is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company will adopt SFAS 143 on
January 1, 2003.

In April of 2002, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145 (“SFAS 145™) was issued, which rescinded
SFAS Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, amended No. 13 and contained technical corrections. As a result of SFAS 145,
gains and losses from extinguishments of debt will be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet the criteria
in APB Opinion No. 30, that they are unusual and infrequent and not part of an entity’s recurring operations. The
Company will adopt SFAS 145 on January 1, 2003,

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, which addresses significant issues regarding the recognition,
measurement, and reporting of costs that are associated with exit and disposal activities, including restructuring
activities that are currently accounted for pursuant to the guidance that the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) has
set forth in EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs
to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)”. SFAS 146 revises the accounting for
certain lease termination costs and employee termination benefits, which are generally recognized in connection
with restructuring charges. The provisions of SFAS 146 are effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated
after December 31, 2002. The Company has not determined what impact, if any, will occur once SFAS 146 is
adopted on January 1, 2003.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 457), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantee, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, which addresses the
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under
guarantees. FIN 45 also requires the recognition of a liability by a guarantor at the inception of certain guarantees
that are entered into or modified after December 31, 2002.

3. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND MANAGEMENT’S PLAN

As shown on the accompanying financial statements, the Company incurred a net loss of $2,477,068 for
the year ended December 31, 2002. Management believes it has sufficient liquidity and cash resources to
sustain the operations of the Company for the next twelve months. Also, the Company’s co-chairmen of
the board and co-CEOs have had management and administrative disputes which may have adversely
affected the Company’s business, operations and results of operations. In response to these losses and
disputes, management and the board of directors have developed a plan to effectuate the return of the
Company to profitability and to resolve any future management and administrative disputes and have
entered into a non-binding letter of intent to distribute the stock of Advantage to the stockholders of the
Company, which would result in splitting the Company’s business segments (retail brokerage and order
execution services). See note 16 for business segment information.




EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

3. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND MANAGEMENT’S PLAN (Continued)

Management and the board of directors have taken, and intend to take, such actions as may be necessary,
including the reduction of costs, so that the Company will return to profitability. In addition, on March
28, 2003, (a) the board of directors established two separate board committees to operate each of the
Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries and (b) the Company executed a non-binding letter of intent that
provided for the execution of a definitive agreement which would provide for, no later than June 30,
2003, among other things: (1) the distribution of all of the common stock of Advantage to holders of the
Company’s common stock; (2) the registration of Advantage’s common stock with the Securities and
Exchange Commission; (3) the resignation by one of the Co@panyfs co-chairmen of the board and co-
chief executive officers from all offices held in the Company, Empire Group and Advisors, and
resignation by the other of all offices held in Advantage; and (4) mutual releases of any claims among the
parties. In addition, the definitive agreement would provide that within 90 days of the distribution of
Advantage’s common stock, the Company’s co-chairmen and co-chief executive officers will sell or
exchange with each other all shares held by one in the Company for all shares held by the other in
Advantage. There is no assurance that the definitive agreement will be executed or the distribution of
Advantage common stock described above will be consummated and, therefore, the accompanying
financial statements do not reflect the affect of this distribution.

Notwithstanding the actions described above, any disputes between the co-chairmen of the board and co-
CEO’s that are not resolved in a timely manner may materially adversely affect the operations and
financial condition of the Company and affect the ability of the Company to regain profitability.

There is also no assurance that management’s business plan will be successful or that the Company will
achieve profitability. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the
outcome of these uncertainties.

4. PRO FORMA INFORMATION

The Company’s and its subsidiaries S corporations election automatically terminated on April 9, 2002, with the
completion of its public offering. Prior to that date, Empire Group, Advantage and Advisors, individually, with the
consent of their stockholders, elected to be taxed as S corporations, which provide for taxable income of the
respective companies to be included in the income tax returns of the individual stockholders. The pro forma:
adjustments shown in the consolidated statements of operation reflect provisions for income taxes computed based
on statutory tax rates as if the Company had been subject to federal and state taxation during the periods presented.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

5. ACQUISITION OF CUSTOMER LISTS AND IMPAIRMENT

On July 23, 2001, the Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Centennial Capital
Management, Inc. (“Centennial”). Centennial was a securities broker dealer that provided a diversified range of
retail brokerage services through independent registered representatives. The transaction has been accounted for as
a purchase effective as of August 1, 2001.

The purchase price of $1,735,155 was based on the revenues of the former Centennial representatives for the three
months ended December 31, 2001, and was reduced by the amount of assumed liabilities. The allocation of the
purchase price is as follows:

Cash $ 25,000
Receivable from clearing organization 22,571
Customer lisst 2,078.214
2,125,785
Total liabilities assumed (390.630)
Net assets acquired $ 1,735,155

The revenue, net income and identifiable assets have been assigned to the retail brokerage services segment for
segment information purposes.

Since the acquisition did not meet the conditions of a significant acqunsltlon at the 20% or greater threshold, pro
forma information has not been provided.

The customer list is being amortized at the projected average life of a registered representative and customers, which
is estimated by the Company to be 3.3 years. In December of 2002, as a result of far lower revenues than anticipated
and lower expected future cash flows, the Company determined that a partial impairment of the customer lists was
required. Therefore, an impairment charge of $965,358 was recorded.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company purchased two customer lists and registered representative
relationships for $144,464. The consideration for both acquisitions was based on percentages of gross revenues
generated or received by the Company. Revenues generated during the year ended December 31, 2002 were less
than anticipated and therefore, the Company recorded impairment charges totaling $36,116.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

5. ACQUISITION OF CUSTOMER LISTS AND IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

At December 31, 2002, customer lists consisted of the following:

Customer lists at cost $2,356,731
Less accumulated amortization (1,023,867)
Less impairment charges (1.001.474)

$ 331390

Amortization for the year ending December 31, 2002 was $690,403. Estimated Amortization expense for the years
ended December 31,2003 and 2004 is approximately $166,000.

6. CLEARING AGREEMENTS

In connection with its retail brokerage services business, the Company has clearing agreements with three
unaffiliated firms. Under such agreements, the clearing brokers provide the Company execution and clearing
services on a fully disclosed basis. In order to facilitate transactions with the unaffiliated clearing brokers, the
Company maintained deposits of approximately $121,000 and $125,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, at the three unaffiliated firms. The deposits are included in deposits at clearing organizations in the
consolidated statements of financial condition.

7. RECEIVABLE FROM AND PAYABLE TO CUSTOMERS

Receivable from and payable to customers arise from cash and margin transactions executed by the Company on the
customers’ behalf. Receivables are collateralized by securities owned by customers with an estimated fair value of
$6,697,000 and $9,121,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Such collateral is not reflected in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

8. RECEIVABLE FROM AND PAYABLE TO BROKERS AND DEALERS AND CLEARING
ORGANIZATIONS

Amounts receivable from and payable to brokers and dealers and clearing organizations consisted of the following at
December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
~ Receivable:

Securities failed to deliver $ 62,197 $ 258810
Deposits on securities borrowed 928,800 1,358,100
Other amounts due from brokers and dealers 732,624 2159716

$ 1,723.621 $ 3,776,626

Payable:

Securities failed to received $ 207,257 $ 10,414
Payable to clearing organizations 139,874 18,749
Order flow payable 40,416 86,989
Correspondent payable 51,498 -
Settlement payable 33,391 -

$ 472436 $_ 116,152

Deposits on securities borrowed represent cash on deposit with other brokers and dealers relating to securities
borrowed. If these deposits are not returned, the Company could sustain a loss if the market value of the securities
borrowed declines.

9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities consisted of the following:

2002 2001
Accounts payable $ 479,596 $ 440,054
Cash overdrafts 1,092,139 835,053
Accrued payroll 534,765 467,645
Accrued payroll taxes 30,677 41,240
Accrued rent 150,454 276,312
Other accrued expenses 606,176 171,272
Deferred revenue 519,237 500,000

$ 3413044 $ 2,731,576




EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

10. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND CASH OVERDRAFT

The Company maintains three lines of credit totaling $25,000,000 with a commercial bank collateralized by
customer margin account securities and Company owned securities. Borrowings under the lines of credit bear
interest at the bank’s prime rate on commercial loans plus 2%. Loan amounts are restricted to a percentage of the
market value of the related customer margin accounts or firm collateral securities, as applicable. The term of the
current agreements expire on May 31, 2003, but are subject to termination at any time at the bank’s discretion. The
average interest rates on the lines of credit were approximately 2.75% and 5.0% during the years ended December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2002, 2001, the Company pledged approximately $ 0 and
$4,036,000 respectively, of non-fully or partially paid customer securities against the outstanding line of credit
balances of 30 and $1,032,000 respectively. Additionally, at December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had cash
overdrafts of approximately $ 1,092,000 and $579,000 due to the same bank. At December 31, 2001, the Company
had a cash overdraft of approximately $256,000 due to another bank. The cash overdrafts are recorded in accounts
payable on the statements of financial condition.

11. EQUITY

On April 9, 2002, the Company sold 1,000,000 shares of common stock for $6,000,000. The total expenses incurred
by the Company relating to the offering were $957,384, including underwriting commissions and other expenses.
The net amount to the Company after deducting the total expenses incurred in the offering was $5,042,616. As of
the date of the offering, the Company and its subsidiaries terminated their S corporation status and the Company will
be taxed thereafter as a C corporation. The stockholders contributed all the retained earnings through April 9, 2002
totaling $3,331,082 to additional paid-in capital. The Company distributed $865,941 to the stockholders for the
payment of individual income taxes while the Company was an S corporation. The Company accrued estimated
payments to the stockholders for income taxes for 2002 in the approximate amount of $60,000.

During April and November 2002, the Company repurchased 212,200 shares of its common stock. The total cost of
the stock repurchased was $1,135,197 and is included as treasury stock on the accompanying financial statements.

During March 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan is
designed to serve as an incentive for retaining directors, employees, consultants and advisors. Stock options, stock
appreciation rights and restricted stock options may be granted to certain persons in proportion to their contribution
the overall success of the Company as determined by the board of directors or a committee thereof. Effective April
9, 2002, the Company granted 677,950 options for common stock, including 87,500 granted to consultants. All
options, except for 200,000, vest over five years and expire in ten years from the date of grant. The 200,000 options
vest immediately but only 100,000 can be sold within the first year.



EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000
11. EQUITY (Continued)

The following table summarizes stock options at December 31, 2002:

Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable Stock Options
Weighted Weighted
Average Weighted Average Weighted-
Remaining Average Remaining average
Exercise Contractual Exercise Contractual exercise
Price range Shares Life Price Shares Life price
$ 6.00 648,100 9.28 $ 6.00 100,000 928 $ 6.00

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2002:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of year - $ 0.00
Granted ‘ 677,950 6.00
Exercised - 0.00
Cancelled (29.850) 6.00
Outstanding at end of year 648,100 $ 6.00
Exercisable at end of year 100,000

Weighted average fair value of
Options granted during the year $ 472

The Company accounts for stock options using SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” As
permitted by SFAS No. 123, the Company has chosen to apply APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations in accounting for its Plan. Accordingly, no compensation cost has
been recognized for employee options granted under the Plan.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

11, EQUITY (continued)

As required by SFAS 123, pro forma disclosures regarding net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share must be
computed as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method. The fair
value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with the
followmg assumptions used for grants in 2002:

For the year ended
December 31, 2002

Risk free interest rate 5.22%
Expected lives ‘ ' 10
Expected volatility 92.00%

Expected dividend yield ‘ -

The Company’s pro forma information under SFAS 123 for the years ended December 31, 2002 were as follows:

As Pro
Reported Forma
Net loss 5 (2477068) $(5215573)
Net loss per share — basic
and diluted $ (54) _$. (1.14)

On April 9, 2002, the Company issued 87,500 options to consultants and charged operations for the fair value of 'the
options in the amount of $413,000, using the Black Scholes Option Model using the same assumptions as above.
Since operations were charged for these options, the pro forma information above does not duplicate these options.

12. INCOME TAXES

The Company was taxed as an S Corporation until April 9, 2002. On this date, the Company terminated its S
election and, thereafter is taxed as a C corporation,
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

12. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects generated after the Company became a C corporation, consisting of temporary differences and net
operating loss carryforwards, which create deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2002, are as follows:

Intangible assets $ 575,000
Deferred revenue 195,000
Net operating losses 200,000
970,000
Less valuation allowance (970.000)
Net deferred tax asset $ —

Deferred taxes are recognized for temporary differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial
statement and income tax purposes. The difference relates primarily to net operating losses, intangible assets (use of
different lives for tax and financial purposes) and deferred revenue (taxable for tax and not recognized as revenue
for financial purposes). A valuation allowance has been recorded due to the uncertainty of realizing the net deferred
tax asset.

The Company had available at December 31, 2002, a net operating loss carryforward for federal and state tax
purposes of approximately $500,000 that could be applied against taxable income in subsequent years through
December 31, 2022. The tax effect of the net operating loss is approximately $200,000.

Reconciliation of the differences between income tax benefit computed at the federal and state statutory tax rates
and the provision for income tax benefit for the years ended December 31, 2002 was as follows:

Income tax loss at federal statutory tax rate (34.000%

State taxes, net of federal benefit (3.63)%
ns Valuation allowance I ‘ 37.63%

Provision for income taxes —%
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Related party commitments

In November 1999, the Company entered into a lease agreement for operating facilities with a corporation owned by
the two controlling stockholders of the Company. The lease contains escalating rental payments and expires in May
2009. Rental expense is reflected on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. During the year ended
December 31, 2001, the stockholders deferred payment of rent, and for the year ended December 2000, the
stockholders waived payment of rent by the Company. For the year ended December 31, 2000, $276,312 was
recorded as contributed to capital. During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company overpaid the rent in the
amount of $25,668. This amount is recorded as prepaid rent and will be utilized to offset rent payments in 2003.

At December 31, 2002, future minimum annual lease payments for the next five years, all of which relate to the
operating facilities lease, were as follows:

2003 $ 263,868
2004 . 277,062
2005 290,918
2006 305,460
2007 320,726

Other commitments and contingencies

The Company has entered into employment agreements (the “Agreements”) with the co-chief executive officers of
the Company. The terms of the Agreements commenced on April 9, 2002, the date the initial public offering was
completed, and extend through December 31, 2005, unless cancelled earlier as provided for in the Agreements. The
Agreements provide a base salary of $375,000 for each co-chief executive officer, plus bonuses and incentive
compensation to be decided at the discretion of the board of directors. The Agreements automatically extend for a
period of one additional year commencing January 3, 2003, and each year thereafter, unless written notice is
delivered by either of the co-chief executive officers or the Company terminating the Agreement(s) by giving one
hundred eighty (180) days notice of termination prior to January 1 of any year. The minimum amount to be paid to
both of the co-chief executive officers under the Agreements in any full year is $750,000.
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

The Company entered into an employment agreement (the “Agreement”) with Donald Wojnowski, Jr., the vice
president of development of the Company on December 27, 2000. Mr. Wojnowski resigned in February 2003 as
Vice President, Business Development, but continues to serve as an employee of the Company.

Except for the Company’s Atlanta office, the Company does not have lease agreements for its branch offices. The
rent for the branch offices is paid by the independent registered representatives located in those offices. The

Company’s Atlanta office lease expires on August 31, 2004.

At December 31, 2002, future minimum annual rental payments for the Atlanta office were as follows:

2003 14,479
2004 9.875
$ 24354

The Company is a defendant or co-defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its retail brokerage services business.
The Company is contesting the allegations of the complaints in these cases. In view of the number and diversity of
claims against the Company, the number of jurisdictions in which litigation is pending and the inherent difficulty of
predicting the outcome of litigation and other claims, management cannot state with certainty the eventual outcome
of pending litigation or other claims. In the opinion of management, based on discussions with legal counsel, the
outcome of the matters will not result in a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of
the Company.

14. NET CAPITAL AND RESERVE REQUIREMENTS

The broker dealer subsidiaries of the Company are subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission Uniform Net
Capital Rule 15¢3-1 and the requirements of the securities exchanges of which they are members. This rule requires
that aggregate indebtedness, as defined, not exceed 15 times net capital, as defined. Rule 15¢3-1 also provides for
an alternative net capital requirement which, if elected, requires that net capital be equal to the greater of $250,000
or 2% of aggregate debit items computed in applying the formula for determination of reserve requirements.
Advantage elected to use the alternative net capital calculation for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The Company is subject to SEC Uniform Net Capital Rule 15¢3-1, which requires the maintenance of minimum net
capital equal to $250,000 and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall
not exceed 15 to 1. Net capital and the related ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, as defined, may
fluctuate on a daily basis. At December 31, 2002, the Company had net capital of $476,235, which was $226,235 in
excess of its required net capital of $250,000. The Company’s ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital was 4.01
to 1. The Company claims exemption from Rule 15¢3-3 under Paragraph (k)(2)(ii) of the Rule as all customer
transactions are cleared through other broker-dealers on a fully disclosed basis.
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14. NET CAPITAL AND RESERVE REQUIREMENTS (continued)

Net capital positions of the Company's broker dealer subsidiaries were as follows at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
Advantage Trading Group:
Nét capital és a pércentage of aggregate -
Debit items 30.00% 16.00%
Net capital $ 2,460,080 $ 1,798,877
Required net capital 3 250,000 $ 250,000
Empire Group
Ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital 401tol 490to 1
Net capital $ 476,235 $ 330491
Required net capital $ 250,000 $ 250,000

Advantage is also subject to Rule 15¢3-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which specifies certain
conditions under which brokers and dealers carrying customer accounts are required to maintain cash or qualified
securities in a special reserve bank account for the exclusive benefit of customers.

Amounts to be maintained, if required, are computed in accordance with a formula defined in the Rule. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, Advantage was not required to maintain cash or securities in a special reserve
account. However, Advantage had on deposit in the special reserve account approximately $419,132 and $478,000
at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Empire Group is exempt from the provisions of Rule 15¢3-3 under Paragraph (k)(2)(ii) of the Rule as it clears all
transactions with and for customers on a fully disclosed basis with affiliated and unaffiliated clearing brokers.

15.. - OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

In the normal course of business, the Company purchases and sells securities as principal for its own account and on
behalf of its customers. If either the customer or a broker dealer fails to perform, the Company could be required to
discharge the obligations of the non-performing party. In these circumstances, the Company could sustain a loss of
the market value if the security contract is different from the contract value of the transaction.

In addition, the Company may sell securities it does not own and will, therefore, be obligated to purchase such

securities at a future date and may incur a loss if the market value of the securities increases subsequent to the date
of sale. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had sold no securities that it did not own.
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15. OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

In the normal course of business, the Company's customer clearance activities involve the execution, settlement, and
financing of various customer securities transactions. These activities may expose the Company to off-balance sheet
risk in the event the customer or other broker is unable to fulfill its contracted obligations and the Company has to
purchase or sell the financial instrument underlying the contract at a loss.

The Company's customer securities activities are transacted on either a cash or margin basis. In margin transactions,
the Company extends credit to its customers, subject to various regulatory and internal margin requirements,
collateralized by cash and securities in the customers' accounts. In connection with these activities, the Company
executes and clears customer transactions involving the sale of securities not yet purchased, substantially all of
which are transacted on a margin basis subject to individual-exchange regulations. Such transactions may expose
the Company to significant off-balance sheet risk in the event margin requirements are not sufficient to fully cover
losses that customers may incur. In the event the customer fails to satisfy its obligations, the Company may be
required to purchase or sell financial instruments at prevailing market prices to fulfill customer’s obligations. The
Company seeks to control the risks associated with its customer activities by requiring customers to maintain margin
collateral in compliance with various regulatory and internal guidelines. The Company monitors margin levels daily
and requires the customer to deposit additional collateral pursuant to such guidelines or to reduce positions.

The Company’s customer financing and securities settlement activities require the Company to pledge customer
securities as collateral in support of various secured financing sources such as bank loans and securities loaned. In
the event other parties are unable to meet contractual obligations to return customer securities pledged as collateral,
the Company may be exposed to the risk of acquiring the securities at prevailing market prices in order to satisfy its
customer obligations. The Company controls this risk by monitoring the market value of securities pledged on a
daily basts and by requiring adjustments of collateral levels in the event of excess market exposure. In addition, the
Company establishes credit limits for such activities and monitors compliance on a daily basis.

16. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

The Company operates in two primary business segments - retail brokerage services and order execution services.
Retail brokerage services (including sale of equities, mutual funds and fixed income products) are provided on a
discount basis to retail and institutional customers through online trading or through the branches of Empire Group.
Retail brokerage services also include services provided through Advisors. Order execution services are conducted
through Advantage, which fills orders to purchase or sell securities received from independent broker dealers on
behalf of their retail customers. Advantage typically acts as principal in these transactions and derives order
execution trading revenues, net, from the difference between the price paid when a security is bought and the price
received when that security is sold. Advantage does not typically receive a fee or commission for providing order
execution services. Advantage normally closes out of its trade positions at the end of each day and does not
maintain securities inventory in order to reduce the risks from market volatility. Advantage also clears securities
transactions for its own account and for its affiliate, Empire Group plus other unaffiliated broker dealers. The
expenses of the Company and its identifiable assets are carried as corporate in the segment information.
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16. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT (continued)

The accounting policies of the Company's segments are the same as those described in the “Nature of Business and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” All of the Company's financial transactions are transacted in the
United States, and all long-lived assets are located in the United States. Information concerning operations in these
segments of business is as follows at December 31, 2002. 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000

Revenue:
Order execution services

Retail brokerage services 13,841,355 10,587,008 13,014,486

Eliminations (3.677.560) (515.408) (1,064,790)
$18480,708  $19,510.259  $28,442,089

Net Income (loss):

Order execution services $(981,344) § 990,191 $ 1,368,385

Retail brokerage services (1,261,139) 811,528 1,229,192

Corporate (234,585) (266,438) -
$02477,068) § 1535281 § 2.597,577

Identifiable assets:
Order execution services

$ 8,316,913

$ 9,438,659

$ 16,492,993

$ 10,657,069

$ 14,049,396

$ 16,506,832

Retail brokerage services 2,961,433 2,539,131 2,045,025
Corporate 7,115,750
Eliminations (7.239.619) 986.889 -

Eliminations represent revenues, investments in subsidiaries, receivables and payables from intercompany
transactions. Most intercompany transactions are the result of clearing operations between Empire Group and

$13,494,633  $17,575,416 318,551,857

Advantage. Certain amounts in 2001 have been reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation.
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17. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA

2002
First Second Third Fourth
- Quarter quarter quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 5,450,590 $ 4604827 $ 4,550,434 § 3,874,857
Income (loss) before income taxes 901,698 (405,738) (455,043) (2,517,985)
Provision for income taxes - ‘ - - ; -
Net Income (loss) 3 901,698 §_(405738) § (455,043) $(2,517,985)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share 3 023 § (09) S (09 § (059
Unaudited pro forma
Information:
Income (loss) before taxes $ 901,698 $ (405,738)
Provision for income taxes 340,000 (153.000)
Net income (loss) 561,6 252
Pro forma earnings (loss) per
share — basic and diluted b 0.14 3 (.05)
Weighted average shares
Outstanding 4,000,000 4,740,112 4,802,800 4,795,952
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17.. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA
2001
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter quarter uarter
Net sales $6,932,845 § 4,093,220 $ 4,167,075 § 4,317,119
Income (loss) before income taxes 904,915 ; (28,730) 296,525 362,571
Provision for income taxes : $ - - - =
Net Income (loss) $ 904915 $ (28730) §__296525 § 362,571
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share $ 023 3% 000 § 007 & 0.08
Unaudited pro forma
Information: ,
Income (loss) before taxes $ 904915 $ (405,730) § 296,525 § 362,571
Provision for income taxes 341.000 153.000 (111.613) (136,085)
Net income (loss) 63915 $ (252,738) § 184910 § 226486
Pro forma earnings (loss) per
share - basic and diluted $ 0.14 § (05 § 005 § 0.05
Weighted average shares _
Outstanding 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $1,001,500, see Note 5.
In the second quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a $413,000 charge for options issued to consuitants.
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EMPIRE FINANCIAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING

ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
Balance at Additions Additions Deductions
Beginning of  Charges to Costs Charged to for payments  Balance at End
Period and Expenses Other Accounts ~  or Write-offs of Period

Year ended December 31,

2002:
Allowance for impairment '

of intangible assets $ — $ 1,001,474 $ — $ — 81,001,474

The deferred income tax valuation has been omitted because such information is disclosed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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